FY 2016-17 CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL PERFORMANCE AND EVALUATION REPORT

VENTURA COUNTY CDBG ENTITLEMENT AREA,

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT GRANTEE AND

HOME PARTICIPATING JURISDICTION

September 2017

CAPER

Preface

In 2015 the County of Ventura, member jurisdictions of the Entitlement Area (EA) and four entitlement jurisdictions (the Cities of Camarillo, Simi Valley, Thousand Oaks and San Buenaventura) collectively prepared the FY 2015-19 Regional Consolidated Plan to address unmet needs of low-income persons in the County and propose strategies to meet those needs.

This FY 2016-17 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) represents the second year of the five-year period addressed in the Regional Consolidated Plan. The FY 2016-17 CAPER contains information regarding accomplishments funded by and in keeping with the intent of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME), Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) and other funding sources for the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 for the Ventura Urban County Entitlement Area. The four entitlement jurisdictions prepared separate CAPERs covering this period.

This CAPER was prepared using the eCon Planning Suite system developed by HUD. The system prescribes the structure and contents of this document, following the Federal Consolidated Planning regulations.

This report is also available on the County of Ventura website at:

http://www.ventura.org/community-development/hud-reports

The County Executive Office, Community Development Unit, has prepared this report. Comments and questions should be addressed to Community.Development@ventura.org.

Table of Contents

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes	4
CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted	9
CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a)	10
CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b)	17
CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c)	20
CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j)	24
CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j)	26
CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230	33
CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c)	35
CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d)	36
CR-60 - ESG 91.520(g) (ESG Recipients only)	39
CR-65 - Persons Assisted	41
CR-70 – ESG 91.520(g) - Assistance Provided and Outcomes	44
CR-75 – Expenditures	45

CR-05 - Goals and Outcomes

Progress the jurisdiction has made in carrying out its strategic plan and its action plan. 91.520(a)

This could be an overview that includes major initiatives and highlights that were proposed and executed throughout the program year.

The County identified nine Priority Needs in the Regional Consolidated Plan, all of which are designated as high priority:

- Increase Availability of Housing
- Provide Services to the Homeless
- Improve Quality of Housing
- Economic Development
- Improve Infrastructure
- Provide Non-Homeless Supportive Services
- Improve Public Facilities
- Planning and Administration
- Fair Housing Opportunity

The goal for Availability of Housing, the addition of 64 new rental units, was not achieved due to the lengthy nature of affordable housing development. All planned rental units are currently in pre-development. Program year accomplishments included the completion, per 24 CFR 92.2, of three projects funded with HOME funds in previous years (26 units total, of which 16 units were County HOME-assisted). All 26 units were dedicated to households at or below 50% of the Area Median Income (very low-income).

Services to the Homeless were provided using both CDBG and ESG funds. The overall accomplishment rate is 94%, with the majority of the programs serving more than their goal numbers.

Quality of Housing activities during the year included both housing rehabilitation and code enforcement. 100% of the rehabilitation goal was met, and 112% of the code enforcement goal was met.

Economic Development is provided by Women's Economic Ventures' Self Employment Training program. 11 of a goal of 15 businesses were served this program year, achieving a good 73% of the goal. These businesses consisted of 29 individuals, which, despite being short on

the overall number of businesses served, exceeds expectations.

No Infrastructure improvements were scheduled for the program year.

Non-Homeless Supportive Services consisted of senior services, including the long term care ombudsman program. These activities achieved 117% of their goals for the year.

Public Facility projects completed during the year included both those that received 2016-17 funding as well as continuing activities. 99% of the annual goal was achieved, mainly due to projects continued from prior years. These include final reporting of Fillmore's Fire Squad Truck, completion of Ojai's Sarzotti Park Renovation, and the County's Horizon View Mental Health Rehabilitation Center.

Fair Housing and Administration are funded with the County's CDBG, HOME, and ESG administrative allowances, and do not set goals or report beneficiaries.

A detailed description of each activity and its progress is included in Attachment 1.

Note that there was a typographical error in the FY15-16 CAPER under "Improve Quality of Housing - Housing Code Enforcement/Foreclosed Property Care" and 65 beneificiaries were not reported. The totals in this CAPER under the "Actual – Strategic Plan" column have been revised to include these beneficiaries.

Comparison of the proposed versus actual outcomes for each outcome measure submitted with the consolidated plan and explain, if applicable, why progress was not made toward meeting goals and objectives. 91.520(g)

Categories, priority levels, funding sources and amounts, outcomes/objectives, goal outcome indicators, units of measure, targets, actual outcomes/outputs, and percentage completed for each of the grantee's program year goals.

Goal	Category	Source / Amount	Indicator	Unit of Measure	Expected – Strategic Plan	Actual – Strategic Plan	Percent Complete	Expected – Program Year	Actual – Program Year	Percent Complete
Economic Development	Non-Housing Community Development	CDBG: \$	Businesses assisted	Businesses Assisted	75	22	29.33%	15	11	73.33%
Fair Housing Opportunity	Non- Homeless Special Needs	CDBG: \$	Public service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit	Persons Assisted	4000	0	0.00%			
Improve Infrastructure	Non-Housing Community Development	CDBG: \$	Public service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit	Persons Assisted	125000	0	0.00%			
Improve Public Facilities	Non-Housing Community Development	CDBG: \$	Public Facility or Infrastructure Activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit	Persons Assisted	125000	120706	96.56%	69257	68726	99.23%
Improve Quality of Housing	Affordable Housing	CDBG: \$	Rental units rehabilitated	Household Housing Unit	75	0	0.00%			
Improve Quality of Housing	Affordable Housing	CDBG: \$	Homeowner Housing Rehabilitated	Household Housing Unit	300	14	4.67%	8	8	100.00%
Improve Quality of Housing	Affordable Housing	CDBG: \$	Housing Code Enforcement/Foreclosed Property Care	Household Housing Unit	4000	2145	53.63%	825	922	111.76%
Increase Availability of Housing	Affordable Housing	CDBG: \$ / HOME: \$	Rental units constructed	Household Housing Unit	250	12	4.80%	64	12	18.75%

Provide Non- Homeless Supportive Services	Non- Homeless Special Needs	CDBG: \$	Public service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing Benefit	Persons Assisted	100000	6173	6.17%	2235	2608	116.69%
Provide		CDBG:	Public service activities	Persons						
Services to the	Homeless	\$ / ESG:	other than Low/Moderate	Assisted 30000	7735	25.78%	3367	3174	94.27%	
Homeless		\$	Income Housing Benefit	Assisted			23.70/0			J4.27/0
Provide		CDBG:	Homeless Person	Persons						
Services to the	Homeless	\$ / ESG:			0	78		0	2	
Homeless	\$		Overnight Shelter Assisted							
Provide		CDBG:	Overnight/Emergency							
Services to the	Homeless	\$ / ESG:	Shelter/Transitional	Beds	0	0		0	0	
Homeless		\$	Housing Beds added							

Table 1 - Accomplishments – Program Year & Strategic Plan to Date

Assess how the jurisdiction's use of funds, particularly CDBG, addresses the priorities and specific objectives identified in the plan, giving special attention to the highest priority activities identified.

High Priority Need	Expenditure	Percentage
Improve Quality of Housing	\$ 309,668.59	25.43%
Increase Availability of Housing	54,031.69	4.44%
Provide Non-Homeless Supportive Services	98,329.38	8.08%
Provide Services to the Homeless	135,298.00	11.11%
Improve Public Facilities	267,957.34	22.01%
Improve Infrastructure	0	0.00%
Economic Development	40,000.00	3.29%
Fair Housing Opportunity	21,271.00	1.75%
Planning and Administration	290,981.00	23.90%
Total	\$ 1,217,537.00	100.00%

CDBG funds were expended for the specific high priority needs as shown in the table "High Priority Needs."

Table 2 - High Priority Needs

CR-10 - Racial and Ethnic composition of families assisted

Describe the families assisted (including the racial and ethnic status of families assisted). 91.520(a)

	CDBG	HOME	ESG
White	5,003	1	38
Black or African American	90	2	3
Asian	112	1	0
American Indian or American Native	4	0	2
Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	11	0	0
Total	5,220	4	43
Hispanic	3,278	12	25
Not Hispanic	1,942	4	19

Table 3 – Table of assistance to racial and ethnic populations by source of funds

Narrative

CDBG program requirements include an additional five race categories that are not included in Table 2. An additional 576 beneficiaries reported their race in one of these other categories, with 405 of these reporting their ethnicity as Hispanic. This brings total beneficiaries for CDBG to 5,788, with 3,683 identifying as Hispanic.

HOME beneficiaries were reported for the initial residents of the three projects that were closed out in IDIS during the reporting period. For HOME, 12 beneficiaries reported their race as "Other Multiracial" in the HOME Close-Out report and were entered under this category in IDIS at the time the project was completed. These beneficiaries are not included in Table 2 because the CAPER does not provide "Other Multiracial" as a category.

There were two active County ESG subrecipient projects during the reporting period of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. The Human Services Agency (HSA) Homeless Services department managed both the HSA Homeless Prevention and HSA Rapid Re-housing programs, serving recipients countywide. The total number of beneficiaries was 44; however one beneficiary did not provide data on race and is excluded from the top portion of Table 2.

CR-15 - Resources and Investments 91.520(a)

Identify the resources made available

Source of Funds	Source	Resources Made Available	Amount Expended During Program Year
CDBG	CDBG	1,561,260	1,217,537
HOME	HOME	487,415	144,736
НОРWA	HOPWA	0	0
ESG	ESG	0	21,500
Other	Other	0	0

Table 4 - Resources Made Available

Narrative

Program year expenditures have been updated for CDBG to reflect correct amounts, which agree with the CDBG Summary of Accomplishments Report (PR 23).

County ESG funds were awarded in fiscal year 2015-16 with one organization extending services through 6/30/2017. There were no ESG funds awarded in fiscal year 2016-17 and therefore, the resources made available is zero.

Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments

Target Area	Planned Percentage of Allocation	Actual Percentage of Allocation	Narrative Description
Westside Neighborhood Revitalization Strategy Area		0	N/A

Table 5 – Identify the geographic distribution and location of investments

Narrative

The Ventura County Entitlement Area did not identify any geographic target areas.

CDBG program funds were allocated to programs within the five cities (Fillmore, Moorpark, Ojai, Port Hueneme, and Santa Paula) and the unincorporated area according to the three-year Cooperation Agreements that address geographic distribution and programmatic use of funds.

HOME funds are distributed to projects that meet priority needs, are timely, and meet other evaluation factors that indicate a strong probability the project will come to fruition. HOME funds must be used for eligible projects within the EA's boundaries, or in joint projects within the boundaries of contiguous local jurisdictions which serve residents from both jurisdictions. To the extent possible, efforts are made to allocate funding to projects located in each of the Entitlement Areas. The three projects that were completed during the reporting period are located in the Cities of Ventura (1 project) and Santa Paula (2 projects). Two projects are currently in development, including one in the City of Moorpark and one in the City of Santa Paula. Additionally, two projects have been allocated funding and are in predevelopment, to be located in the Cities of Oxnard and Ventura.

ESG funds were awarded in fiscal year 2015-16 to county agencies that serve a broad geography covering the full Continuum of Care. There were no ESG funds awarded in fiscal year 2016-17. Two organizations expended funds in the first fiscal year, while the Human Services Agency extended services into the second year (2016-17) with staff operating Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-housing programs countywide.

Leveraging

Explain how federal funds leveraged additional resources (private, state and local funds), including a description of how matching requirements were satisfied, as well as how any publicly owned land or property located within the jurisdiction that were used to address the needs identified in the plan.

HOME Program

FY16-17 HOME funds were preliminarily reserved to two projects: Rancho Verde and the Ormond Beach Villas (aka Vista Pacifica). Collectively, the projects are expected to leverage more than \$25 million in other private, state and local funds.

The HOME-required match of 25% was exceeded during the reporting period. The federal FY16-17 HOME required match liability was \$60,823.77. Matching funds were provided from a below market interest rate loan in the amount of \$3,444,000 from a local jurisdiction for permanent project financing for a HOME-assisted project currently under construction (Walnut Street Apartments). The present discounted value of yield foregone, in the amount of \$2,057,929, has been counted as match for this reporting period.

ESG Program

The County of Ventura Human Services Agency provided match through County General Funds.

Publicly Owned Land

The County of Ventura owns property throughout the County, most of which is currently used to house County operations or is deed-restricted, limiting its feasibility for new uses. The County has been evaluating the land it owns, as it becomes available, for the purpose of providing affordable housing and will continue to consider land that is deemed as surplus for the needs identified in the Regional Consolidated Plan.

HOME Program Income

HOME Program Income reported in the "Program Income" table is based on the Federal Fiscal Year (10/1/16 - 9/30/17).

Fiscal Year Summary – HOME Match					
1. Excess match from prior Federal fiscal year	19,894,476				
2. Match contributed during current Federal fiscal year	2,057,929				
3. Total match available for current Federal fiscal year (Line 1 plus Line 2)	21,952,405				
4. Match liability for current Federal fiscal year	60,824				
5. Excess match carried over to next Federal fiscal year (Line 3 minus Line 4)	21,891,581				

Table 6 – Fiscal Year Summary - HOME Match Report

	Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year									
Project No. or Other ID	Date of Contribution	Cash (non-Federal sources)	Foregone Taxes, Fees, Charges	Appraised Land/Real Property	Required Infrastructure	Site Preparation, Construction Materials, Donated labor	Bond Financing	Total Match		
Walnut										
Street Family										
Apartments										
#1772	03/22/2017	3,444,000	0	0	0	0	0	2,057,929		

Table 7 – Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year

HOME MBE/WBE report

Program Income – Enter the	Program Income – Enter the program amounts for the reporting period									
Balance on hand at begin-ning of reporting period \$	Amount received during reporting period \$	Total amount expended during reporting period \$	Amount expended for TBRA \$	Balance on hand at end of reporting period \$						
0	80,457	35,084	0	45,373						

Table 8 – Program Income

value of contracts for HOME projects completed during the reporting period Total Minority Business Enterprises								
	Totai	Alaskan Native or	Asian or Pacific	Black Non- Hispanic	Hispanic	White Non- Hispanic		
		American Indian	Islander	inspanie				
Contracts								
Dollar								
Amount	9,245,390	0	0	0	0	9,245,390		
Number	5	0	0	0	0	5		
Sub-Contrac	ts							
Number	10	0	0	0	0	10		
Dollar								
Amount	2,962,060	0	0	0	0	2,962,060		
	Total	Women Business Enterprises	Male					
Contracts								
Dollar								
Amount	9,245,370	0	9,245,370					
Number	5	0	5					
Sub-Contrac	ts							
Number	10	0	10					
Dollar								
Amount	2,962,060	0	2,962,060					

Table 9 - Minority Business and Women Business Enterprises

Minority Owners of Rental Property – Indicate the number of HOME assisted rental property owners and the total amount of HOME funds in these rental properties assisted								
	Total Minority Property Owners					White Non-		
		Alaskan	Asian or	Black Non-	Hispanic	Hispanic		
		Native or	Pacific	Hispanic				
		American	Islander					
		Indian						
Number	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Dollar								
Amount	0	0	0	0	0	0		

Table 10 – Minority Owners of Rental Property

Relocation and Real Property Acquisition – Indicate the number of persons displaced, the cost of relocation payments, the number of parcels acquired, and the cost of acquisition

Parcels Acquired	0	0
Businesses Displaced	0	0
Nonprofit Organizations		
Displaced	0	0
Households Temporarily		
Relocated, not Displaced	0	0

Households	Total	Minority Property Enterprises			White Non-	
Displaced		Alaskan Native or American Indian	Asian or Pacific Islander	Black Non- Hispanic	Hispanic	Hispanic
Number	0	0	0	0	0	0
Cost	0	0	0	0	0	0

Table 11 – Relocation and Real Property Acquisition

CR-20 - Affordable Housing 91.520(b)

Evaluation of the jurisdiction's progress in providing affordable housing, including the number and types of families served, the number of extremely low-income, low-income, moderate-income, and middle-income persons served.

	One-Year Goal	Actual
Number of Homeless households to be		
provided affordable housing units	0	0
Number of Non-Homeless households to be		
provided affordable housing units	68	24
Number of Special-Needs households to be		
provided affordable housing units	4	0
Total	72	24

Table 12 – Number of Households

	One-Year Goal	Actual
Number of households supported through		
Rental Assistance	0	0
Number of households supported through		
The Production of New Units	64	16
Number of households supported through		
Rehab of Existing Units	8	8
Number of households supported through		
Acquisition of Existing Units	0	0
Total	72	24

Table 13 – Number of Households Supported

Discuss the difference between goals and outcomes and problems encountered in meeting these goals.

Because the development of affordable housing is a lengthy process, none of the affordable housing developments funded during the program year were completed during the same cycle.

Sixty-four (64) new units (two projects) of affordable housing were planned during the reporting period. Both projects are currently in predevelopment and are expected to result in seven (7) new HOMEassisted rental units. Three (3) HOME-assisted projects funded during previous years were substantially completed during the previous reporting period (Program Year 2015-16) and completed and closed-out per 24 CFR 92.2 in Program Year 2016-17, providing 12 HOME-assisted units of rental housing for very low-income households and 4 HOME-assisted units of homeowner housing for very low-income households (total HOME-assisted and non-HOME-assisted of 26 units). Two more projects are currently in development and will add fifteen (15) units of new HOME-assisted rental housing (total HOME-assisted and non-HOME-assisted of 34 units).

The County also supports Habitat for Humanity's "Preserve a Home" Program with CDBG funds, which rehabilitated eight homes during the program year.

Discuss how these outcomes will impact future annual action plans.

Two HOME funded projects are currently in development. One is expected to be completed in Program Year 17-18 (11 very low-income rental units) and one in Program Year 18-19 (23 low- and very low-income rental units). Additionally, two projects have preliminary commitments of HOME funds and are expected to be completed in Program Year 19-20 (51 rental units at or below 60% AMI).

Include the number of extremely low-income, low-income, and moderate-income persons served by each activity where information on income by family size is required to determine the eligibility of the activity.

Number of Households Served	CDBG Actual	HOME Actual
Extremely Low-income	5	0
Low-income	3	16
Moderate-income	0	0
Total	8	16

Table 14 – Number of Households Served

Narrative Information

Habitat for Humanity's Preserve a Home program showed excellent progress during the program year. Eight home renovations were completed throughout the Entitlement Area, helping to preserve our aging housing supply.

Three HOME-assisted projects were completed during the reporting period, adding a total of 18 affordable rental units (≤50% AMI), of which 12 units were HOME-assisted, and 8 affordable homeowner units (≤50% AMI), of which 4 units were HOME-assisted, to the community. Two projects

are currently in development and two projects are in pre-development. Upon completion, these projects will add 85 affordable rental units (22 HOME-assisted) to the housing stock, of which 22 are proposed to be for extremely low-income households (\leq 30% AMI), 45 for very low-income households (\leq 50% AMI), and 18 for low-income households (\leq 60% AMI).

The more deeply targeted units (≤50% AMI) provide opportunities for the most vulnerable households, including those paying more than 30% of their income for rent, those living in substandard housing and those who are homeless, disabled or who have been displaced, to obtain clean, safe and affordable housing.

Please see CR-50 for information on other actions taken to foster and maintain affordable housing in the community.

CR-25 - Homeless and Other Special Needs 91.220(d, e); 91.320(d, e); 91.520(c)

Evaluate the jurisdiction's progress in meeting its specific objectives for reducing and ending homelessness through:

Reaching out to homeless persons (especially unsheltered persons) and assessing their individual needs

During the reporting period, the Ventura County Continuum of Care (CoC) has made great strides in providing oversight and coordination for homeless services in Ventura County. A Coordinated Entry System, Pathways to Home, provides referrals and linkages to appropriate resources through a "no-wrong door" approach through all homeless services providers. The CoC is partnering with healthcare providers and other community partners to link-in to the Coordinated Entry System to provide broader coverage and increase ease of access for people in need of services.

Street Outreach is provided throughout the region with attempts to engage individuals in services and create a path to housing. Street Outreach coupled with day service programs such as the One Stop programs, Turning Point's drop-in center in Ventura, Community Action's transition center in Oxnard, Lutheran Social Services' drop-in center in Thousand Oaks and Samaritan Center's drop in-services in Simi Valley provide points of access for individuals in need of basic need services, shelter, case management and housing.

Additional outreach efforts include partnerships with law enforcement agencies, business partners, faith-based organizations, Veteran service organizations, youth service providers and the 2-1-1 service.

The Ventura County CoC has developed a Youth Collaborative of 15 youth service providers to assist with the collaboration and coordination of services among homeless youth and those youth who are atrisk of homelessness, ages 13 to 24. This partnership includes youth shelter providers, Children & Family Services, foster care, Interface, Juvenile Probation, local housing authorities, behavioral health and schools.

Additionally the County has adopted the VI-SPDAT to be used as a screening tool to identify the most vulnerable persons and prioritize these individuals for housing as it becomes available. The CoC has contracted with 2-1-1 to assist with screenings for determining the appropriate referral to services and housing.

Addressing the emergency shelter and transitional housing needs of homeless persons

Ventura County has limited year round emergency shelter available for persons experiencing homelessness. ESG funding provides a critical source of funding for our small scale emergency shelters for priority populations; however the lack of both capital development and operational funding make the addition of emergency shelter beds and transitional housing very difficult.

The CoC's Coordinated Entry System is helping to prioritize the limited sheltering resources for individuals and families that are the most vulnerable, including those who have been homeless for the longest time and those with the highest service needs. The CoC is focused on system performance outcomes including reducing the length of time persons are homeless and increasing exits to permanent housing placements.

The Rescue Mission is the largest provider of year round shelter. The Rescue Mission programs are privately funded and work collaboratively with the CoC providers to help individuals and families find permanent housing options.

Transitional Housing is provided for priority populations and funded through local government and private funding.

Shelters and transitional housing programs currently operating in the County include:

- Turning Point Safe Haven Shelter: 10 beds of emergency shelter for individuals with severe mental illness. Turning Point Foundation also operates River Haven, a program providing temporary shelter to individuals and couples with up to 20 beds, and a Veteran's Transitional Housing Program for 10 veterans.
- Salvation Army Emergency Shelter: provides emergency shelter to 12 homeless individuals. Salvation Army also provides transitional housing and a safe sleep program providing safe locations for persons who are living in their cars.
- RAIN, TLC: Transitional Housing for families and individuals.
- The Kingdom Center: Transitional Housing and an Emergency Shelter with 20 beds for women and children.
- Rescue Mission programs: Emergency Shelter for men, Emergency Shelter for women and children with up to 34 beds, as well as Transitional Housing programs.
- The City Center: Transitional Housing for families.
- Khepera House: Transitional Housing for substance abuse treatment and recovery.
- Seasonal Winter Shelter is provided in West County, Ojai, Simi Valley and Thousand Oaks with 214 beds available countywide in 2016/17. City and County government in partnership with the CoC and community partners are planning for year round shelter options around the county.

Helping low-income individuals and families avoid becoming homeless, especially extremely low-income individuals and families and those who are: likely to become homeless after being discharged from publicly funded institutions and systems of care (such as health care facilities, mental health facilities, foster care and other youth facilities, and corrections programs and institutions); and, receiving assistance from public or private agencies that address housing, health, social services, employment, education, or youth needs

The Ventura County CoC is partnering with publicly funded institutions such as hospitals, mental health facilities, foster care systems and correctional facilities to prevent discharges into homelessness. The National Health Foundation operates a recuperative care program with partnership and funding from all hospitals within the county to provide a place to discharge patients who are homeless and need additional care to prevent readmission to hospital and link them to shelter and housing options. Hospitals and behavioral health facilities use motel vouchers for short-term emergency placement while linking persons to permanent housing options.

The Ventura County CoC is prioritizing permanent supportive housing for highly vulnerable chronically homeless individuals which include high utilizers of emergency services and those cycling through the public institutions as a result of their lack of housing.

Helping homeless persons (especially chronically homeless individuals and families, families with children, veterans and their families, and unaccompanied youth) make the transition to permanent housing and independent living, including shortening the period of time that individuals and families experience homelessness, facilitating access for homeless individuals and families to affordable housing units, and preventing individuals and families who were recently homeless from becoming homeless again

The Ventura County CoC is focusing efforts on homeless subpopulations including individuals and families, veterans, chronically homeless persons and unaccompanied youth.

Chronically homeless persons and families are prioritized for permanent supportive housing resources and moved into housing using a housing first approach with supportive services.

Individuals and families are primarily assisted with Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing dollars from CoC, ESG, CalWORKS, local government funding and private dollars. Veterans are prioritized for VASH and Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF) funding. The CoC has one funded permanent supportive housing project dedicated to Transition Age Youth. Youth providers have been engaged in coordinating and increasing resources for youth.

The CoC is evaluating system performance data including 1) Length of time homeless; 2) Exits to

permanent housing; 3) Returns to homelessness and implementing strategies to improve in these areas. The CoC Board has adopted a Strategic Plan to increase housing inventory and services and implement a full countywide coordinated entry system to improve system outcomes.

The Ventura County CoC has contracted with a housing specialist to assist with landlord engagement and to identify units eligible for permanent supportive housing recipients. The housing specialist has been actively working with the local housing authorities to ensure VASH voucher holders are able to locate housing units for homeless Veterans, as well as seeking units for the rapid re-housing recipients.

CR-30 - Public Housing 91.220(h); 91.320(j)

Actions taken to address the needs of public housing

Public Housing needs in the EA are met by the Area Housing Authority of the County of Ventura, the Housing Authority of the City of Port Hueneme, and the Santa Paula Housing Authority.

Area Housing Authority of the County of Ventura (AHA)

The AHA continued to encourage formation of Resident Councils, composed of residents from each of the public housing complexes. Councils help enhance the quality of life of the residents and recommend the appointment of one resident who sits on the AHA's Board of Commissioners.

In conjunction with Ventura County social services agencies and the community, the Resident Services Department provided access and information on employment, adult education and tutoring, wellness programs, health screening, adult and child protective services, food banks, safety, youth development, and anti-fraud presentations. In addition, AHA worked with partners to provide a summer lunch program and operate an after-school program.

Transportation services were provided to residents and referrals to supportive services were offered to seniors through the Case Management Program, linking residents with resources in the community including Meals on Wheels, the Senior Share Program, HICAP information, safety and nutrition education, and assistance with medical and Medicare questions. Through partnerships with various agencies, full or partial recreational scholarships were provided to youth and the Youth Outreach Program addressed the needs of non-involved and difficult-to-reach youth in the Conejo Valley.

The AHA is also developing 23 new units of affordable housing in the City of Moorpark.

The AHA received and administered Section 8 Tenant Based Assistance (Housing Choice Voucher Program) in the amount of \$24,765,735 during the reporting period.

Housing Authority of the City of Port Hueneme (PHHA)

The PHHA administers 90 public housing units, consisting of 30 family units that range from 1, 2 and 3 bedrooms. The remaining 60 units are occupied by persons who are 62 years or older or disabled.

The PHHA received and administered Section 8 Tenant Based Assistance (Housing Choice Voucher Program) in the amount of \$2,775,827 during the reporting period.

Santa Paula Housing Authority (SPHA)

During the reporting period, the SHPA maintained a 99% utilization rate of the tenant based program, continued construction of an 11-unit project (anticipated completion in November 2017) for seniors,

with five units set-aside for homeless/supportive housing under CA HCD/Supportive Housing Multifamily Housing Program. In addition, the SPHA is performing due diligence on a site to develop as a 20+ unit project for low income seniors that may also include homeless and supportive housing.

On site services to residents of the SPHA were provided by the following partners: Great Expectations, Tri-County Regional Center, The Arc of Ventura County, Santa Paula Mental Health Services, The Institute of Applied Behavioral Analysis and SAGW Care of Ventura County.

The SPHA received and administered Section 8 Tenant Based Assistance (Housing Choice Voucher Program) in the amount of \$5,384,221 during the reporting period.

Actions taken to encourage public housing residents to become more involved in management and participate in homeownership

The AHA provided opportunities for Public Housing residents to participate in management by being a member of the Resident Council, and becoming a Resident Commissioner on the AHA's Board of Commissioners.

To assist Public Housing residents to gain knowledge and move toward homeownership, the AHA offered a free monthly First-Time Home Buyers Workshop which included a free credit score. The AHA encouraged clients who have been assisted under the Section 8 Program for at least one year in becoming homebuyers through HUD's Section 8 Homeownership Program. Participants must be first-time homebuyers, with no one in the household having owned a home within the past three years. The program requires that a participant have a minimum down payment of 3% of the home's purchase price and good credit. The program continues to have approximately 10 participants. In addition, 29 Section 8 clients have successfully left the program and become first-time homeowners, without AHA assistance.

The PHHA made an effort to establish a Resident Council during the reporting period but was unable to successfully implement the council during the program year.

The SPHA administered First Time Home Buyers and Housing Preservation Programs, and accommodated inquiries for possible home ownership by directing residents to agencies offering counseling and other available opportunities. Additionally, the SPHA provided web-site links to the Mortgage Credit Certificate Program to assist income-qualified first time homebuyers.

Actions taken to provide assistance to troubled PHAs

There were no troubled PHAs identified in the County.

CR-35 - Other Actions 91.220(j)-(k); 91.320(i)-(j)

Actions taken to remove or ameliorate the negative effects of public policies that serve as barriers to affordable housing such as land use controls, tax policies affecting land, zoning ordinances, building codes, fees and charges, growth limitations, and policies affecting the return on residential investment. 91.220 (j); 91.320 (i)

While many of the public policy barriers to affordable housing that were identified during the FY2015-19 Regional Consolidated Plan are outside of local control, the following actions were taken during the program year to remove barriers to affordable housing:

Expedited Review

The County and cities of Fillmore, Moorpark, Ojai, Port Hueneme, and Santa Paula all have some form of requirements for the inclusion of affordable housing in market-rate developments. Some jurisdictions also use development agreements to negotiate for affordable housing in large-scale developments or master-planned areas.

Fair Housing Services

CDBG funds were used to fund the County's fair housing services program.

Development Standards and Regulations

The County adopted the Saticoy Area Plan which includes policies to facilitate affordable housing development in a severely disadvantaged community by increasing density and adding a range of housing type options. Several parcels were rezoned resulting in an increase of 110 potential units.

In 2017, the County processed an interim ordinance to amend the Non-Coastal Zoning Ordinance to meet new state regulations on accessory dwelling units. A permanent ordinance amendment for ADUs is currently being drafted for the non-coastal and coastal areas of the County.

The County Building Department developed standardized plans for farmworker dwelling units and accessory dwelling units. These plan sets may be used by applicants instead of hiring an architect to design the dwelling units.

The City of Fillmore permits the use of manufactured dwellings as single-family residences outside of designated mobile home parks under certain circumstances. Additionally, Fillmore is following the State mandated Accessory Dwelling Unit requirements with a plan to create an ordinance following the State's direction for the "over the counter" approval of ADUs.

The City of Moorpark amended its ordinance related to accessory dwelling units to be consistent with state law. There is no longer a minimum lot square footage for ADUs.

The City of Ojai approved tiny homes on wheels as allowable under the City's second unit ordinance for long term rental units, thereby increasing the opportunity for the availability of affordable rental housing. Additionally, the City created a Second Dwelling Unit Compliance Program to legalize dwelling units on lot sizes of 10,800 sq. ft. or larger with graduated sizes of units. To date, 39 units have been legalized and finaled.

Density Bonus

In May of 2017, the City of Moorpark approved a Zoning Ordinance Amendment related to lot size reductions for affordable housing when the City's Affordable Housing Density Bonus is used.

Actions taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

During the reporting period, the following actions were taken to address obstacles to meeting underserved needs:

- The County of Ventura participates in the State's Mortgage Credit Certificate Program to assist income-qualified first-time homebuyers to purchase a home.
- In FY2015-16, the County of Ventura committed \$1 million in match financing for the development of farmworker housing. Three projects were funded under the program and are expected to begin construction over the next few years.
- Through its experience working with affordable developers on properties within the City, the City of Fillmore has discovered that insufficient funding exists for new infrastructure costs. As a result, the City is beginning a new Capital Improvement Program directed at those infrastructure areas that will assist future affordable housing.
- The Ventura County Watershed District is expanding the existing Sespe Creek levee in conformance to FEMA certification requirements. The project is currently under construction. Once completed, the resulting improvements will reduce flood insurance rates for approximately 1/3 of the City of Fillmore.
- The Fillmore Successor Agency owns two parcels of land that are being sold, one of which is in the process for entitlements for 18 units, with 15% of the units identified as affordable. Additionally, the City's Housing Element (2013) identified five parcels for an Overlay District to allow 20 units per acre. The City is currently working with an affordable developer on one of the parcels (the Scoles property) in preparation for an application.
- The City of Moorpark provided financial support for a 24-unit affordable housing complex, which is now under construction.
- The City of Port Hueneme is working on a conversion of a former motel into apartment units which will be deed-restricted to low-income families. The project included a density bonus, off-street parking reductions and waived fees. Issuance of the building permit is expected before the end of 2017. Additionally, the City is actively working with providers to locate potential

project areas within the City's limits for the construction of new, affordable dwelling units.

- An eight unit affordable for-sale development was recently completed in the City of Santa Paula.
- The City of Santa Paula continued to provide programs for owner and renter occupied rehabilitation and rent control assistance through the mobile home rent stabilization program.
- Using the scarce resources available, the Ventura County Behavioral Health Department (VCBH) successfully maintained 171 clients in permanent supportive housing. VCBH housed an additional 15 clients in permanent housing during the reporting period. VCBH has partnered with other property owners throughout the County to work together in housing more individuals whenever housing becomes available to fulfill its commitment to the Housing First approach.

Actions taken to reduce lead-based paint hazards. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

The mission of the Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Program (CLPPP) is to reduce and prevent childhood lead poisoning through education of the public, identification and case management of children with elevated blood lead levels (BLL), and the prevention of environmental exposures to lead.

From July 2016 through June 2017, approximately 12,000 children were tested for BLLs. Laboratories are mandated to send the results of all BLL tests to the state database per state regulations, regardless of result. All medical providers who do well child exams on children in publicly funded programs for low-income children are required to follow the mandated Statewide Targeted Blood Lead Screening Policy. Providers are monitored frequently by the local CLPPP and the Child Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP) Program staff to facilitate the process of lead testing in order to comply with the state mandate.

The CLPPP continued to follow children with BLLs as low as 4.5 u/dL and referred those persistently elevated BLLs between 9.4 u/dL to 14.4 u/dL and all BLLs 14.5 u/dL and over to the CA State Department of Public Health Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Branch (CLPPB) Lead Hazard Reduction Section. The CLPPP Public Health Nurse case managed all children who met case definition per CDC guidelines and initiated a home visit with the Environmental Professional on all cases referred to CLPPB.

In conjunction with the CHDP Program, CLPPP provided education to individuals and groups as well as educational activities to a variety of public and private agency staff and the general public reaching over 8,000 people in Ventura County. Staff participated in over 200 outreach events throughout the community to increase knowledge of lead hazards and increase lead testing in Ventura County.

Actions taken to reduce the number of poverty-level families. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

During the reporting period, CDBG funds supported the Micro Business Development Program through

Women's Economic Ventures (WEV). This program assists individuals in developing skills to start a business of their own. Programs include a 14-week Self Employment Training (SET) course in English, and two Spanish-language programs: a 10-week SET course and a 4-week Business Basics course. During the program year a total of 11 businesses were assisted, consisting of 29 individuals. During 2016-17, only the County and City of Ventura funded WEV. As a result, the County is reporting all beneficiaries with the exception of City of Ventura residents.

Administered through the Workforce Development Board (WDB), federal funds from the Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act (WIOA) helped to support programs and services that were provided at no cost to adults, youth, dislocated workers, and employers. Job seekers had access to employment assistance, career training and education. Employers benefitted from recruitment, customized training and business consulting services.

Programs for adults, dislocated workers and Rapid Response services, provided through the America's Job Centers of California (AJCCs), were operated by the Adult and Family Services Department of the Human Services Agency. The WDB also funded, through direct contracts with community organizations, programs and services for youth and business consulting services. Additional information may be found on the WDB website at: www.workforceventuracounty.org

The EDC-VC reported the following outcomes in reducing the number of poverty level families during the reporting period:

- Direct loans totaling \$1.1 million, creating an estimated 73 jobs for low/mod income workers.
- Layoff aversion services contributing to the retention of 150 jobs at-risk of layoff.
- Operational efficiency training to 3 firms with workers at significant risk of layoff, contributing to the retention of an additional 80 jobs at-risk of layoff.
- 353 firms were provided with business technical assistance, resulting in new capital infusion (by conventional lending from banks, other equity investment) totaling more than \$32 million; and 329 new jobs created.

The County of Ventura enforced its Section 3 Policy on all construction related projects assisted with federal funding where contracts were awarded in excess of \$100,000. Section 3 is a means to foster local economic development, neighborhood economic improvement, and individual self-sufficiency and to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities generated be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who are recipients of government assistance for housing, and to business concerns which provide economic opportunities to low- and very low-income persons. During the reporting period, two Section 3 business concerns were awarded contracts under the CDBG program and three Section 3 business concerns were awarded contracts under the HOME program.

Actions taken to develop institutional structure. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

As reported in the Annual Plan, the County of Ventura serves as the Collaborative Applicant for the countywide Continuum of Care, bringing together diverse entities and organizations with a shared vision of ending homelessness in Ventura County. In addition to preparing, submitting and being awarded \$2,078,551 in CoC funding, several enhancements in CoC operations are improving public information about the dire need for affordable and extremely affordable housing. With vacancy rates hovering around 2% in one of the highest cost areas in the nation, there has been increased focus on this issue. The Continuum of Care website – www.venturacoc.org - hosts agendas and minutes for all CoC Board, subcommittee and Alliance meetings to alert interested parties about opportunities to attend and engage in the discussion. In addition to the CoC, local organizations – including economic development entities (Economic Development Collaborative – Ventura County and the Ventura County Economic Development Association), tourism entities (Ventura County Lodging Association) and the Ventura Council Organization of Governments are exploring non-traditional options to increase the supply of housing for persons of no - , extremely low, and low-income, recognizing its importance to the quality of life in our County.

Most cities within Ventura County, as well as the County, have donated to the Housing Trust Fund. As a local 501 (c)(3) organization they continue to not only fund, but to advocate for, more affordable housing. Members of their executive team and board of directors attend local hearings when affordable housing projects are up for discretional approval. Their annual fundraiser takes on important issues and raises funding for the organization's programs.

The Annual Action Plan identified a gap in the availability of year-around sheltering and housing options. This continues to be an unmet need, but progress is being made with requests by members of the City Managers' committee (all ten city managers and the County Executive Officer) to develop an MOU for consideration by their respective communities to commit to developing localized solutions, to allocate a percentage of their discretionary funding, and support Pathways to Home (the CoC's coordinated entry system). Such collaboration is unprecedented and would, if successful, create new institutional structures to address a significant unmet need in our County.

Actions taken to enhance coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies. 91.220(k); 91.320(j)

Development of the regional Consolidated Plan is facilitating new collaboration among Entitlement entities throughout the County. Coupled with the County's administration of the Countywide Continuum of Care, new and improved coordination between public and private housing and social service agencies have developed. Housing developers and property managers are committing, through the Continuum of Care grant program, to prioritize units for permanent supportive housing by coordinating services with social service agencies.

In addition to the collaborative opportunities created with the development of a Regional Consolidated

Plan, the recent focus on health care reform has generated new partnerships between health care agencies and non-profit housing developers and housing authorities. Supportive services, whether offsite or onsite, for persons needing permanent or temporary assistance, are improving housing stability, thus reducing the number of newly homeless individuals.

The County has retained a consultant for development of an Economic Vitality Plan whose purpose is to identify strategies to improve the economic health of the County, including facilitating job growth for low-moderate income persons. In developing the Plan, the consultant is engaging community members, social service agencies and members of the business community.

The Ventura County CoC has established a Public Information and Outreach committee which assists with the collaboration and communication between public and private housing and social service agencies. Committee members include the Chamber of Commerce, the Human Services Agency, homeless service providers, local housing authorities and private business representatives. Outreach materials have been developed to educate the public about the coordinated entry system, as well as the need for permanent supportive housing units and rapid re-housing leasing.

Identify actions taken to overcome the effects of any impediments identified in the jurisdictions analysis of impediments to fair housing choice. 91.520(a)

During Program Year 2016-17, the Housing Rights Center (HRC) assisted 404 Ventura County residents with housing concerns. Seventy of these individuals (17.3%) presented the agency with questions regarding, and allegations of, housing discrimination. HRC resolved 47 of these matters through appropriate counseling, and was continuing its processing of four additional matters at the end of the program year. HRC opened investigations into the remaining 19 allegations.

Of the 19 cases opened, 16 (84.2%) involved allegations of discrimination based on physical disability, two cases were based on allegations of discrimination based on mental disability, while the remaining case involved an allegation of national origin discrimination. By the conclusion of the program year, HRC had successfully conciliated nine of these cases, closed seven due to the lack of an enforcement option or the client's withdrawal, and was continuing its processing of the remaining cases, with resolutions anticipated in Program Year 2017-18.

The balance of 334 client contacts during the program year addressed a wide variety of general housing concerns, with the emphasis on notices and evictions (29.3%), repairs and substandard conditions (24.3%), rent increases (8.7%), and security deposits (8.4%). HRC resolved 241 (72.2%) of these landlord/tenant inquiries, and made appropriate referrals for the remainder.

Of the 404 Ventura County residents served during the program year, 100% were of moderate to extremely low income, with 89.4% not exceeding low income.

HRC also conducted extensive outreach activities of interest to and impacting residents throughout

Ventura County including: HRC's 18th Annual Housing Rights Summit; informational booths conducted at community events throughout the County, and attended by approximately 1,000 individuals; eight presentations and workshops; twenty-one public service announcements; Management Certification Trainings; an interactive website, www.housingrightscenter.org; publication of a monthly listing of rental properties; distribution of fair housing literature and promotional materials; and continuing updates to HRC's social media presence on *Twitter* and *Facebook*.

CR-40 - Monitoring 91.220 and 91.230

Describe the standards and procedures used to monitor activities carried out in furtherance of the plan and used to ensure long-term compliance with requirements of the programs involved, including minority business outreach and the comprehensive planning requirements

Planned monitoring of CDBG-funded projects varies depending upon a risk analysis of the subrecipient and type of project or program (i.e. construction, economic development, public service, etc.). While monitoring is almost always intended to ensure program compliance, it may also entail measures to improve performance. Monitoring may be fiscal or performance monitoring, Fair Labor Standards Act compliance (Davis-Bacon) and/or environmental review compliance.

Financial Monitoring: The County reviewed monthly Expenditure Summary and Payment Request (ESPR) documents received from the participating jurisdictions and subrecipients. Expenditures were reviewed to ensure compliance with cost eligibility and allocation regulations. Single audits are provided by subrecipients and reviewed as necessary. All projects are routinely monitored to ensure no more than 1.5 times the annual CDBG grant is in the line of credit on April 30 of each year.

Performance Monitoring: In addition, County staff reviewed Quarterly Status Reports (QSR's) for the CDBG program each quarter to ensure performance is adequate and timely compared to the goals stated in the Annual Plan and five-year goals stated in the 2010 Consolidated Plan. These reports were completed by all subrecipients and include information on milestones, status and accomplishments. Progress delays were addressed and resolved. Additional technical assistance was provided to subrecipients undergoing the construction bid process to ensure compliance with all related regulations.

HOME Monitoring: All HOME-funded projects were monitored at the following times to ensure compliance with all HOME program requirements: 1) during construction; 2) upon project completion; and 3) annually during the affordability period with on-site monitoring occurring for each project every three years.

ESG Monitoring: The Ventura County CoC has adopted written standards for CoC and ESG funding. CoC and ESG staff monitored programs through desk monitoring, on-site monitoring and by providing technical assistance to funded providers. ESG projects are monitored at minimum annually. All funded projects provided quarterly status reports which include performance data and narrative on successes and challenges within the program.

Citizen Participation Plan 91.105(d); 91.115(d)

Describe the efforts to provide citizens with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on performance reports.

Pursuant to 24 CFR 91.105(d), citizens were provided with reasonable notice and an opportunity to comment on the Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER). The public comment period was open from August 26, 2017 to September 11, 2017. No comments were received during the public comment period.

The following public notice was published in the Ventura County Star on August 26, 2017 when the draft Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) was made available in hard copy and on the Internet.

NOTICE OF DOCUMENT AVAILABILITY

COUNTY OF VENTURA

DRAFT FY 2016-17 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT

FOR CDBG, ESG & HOME FUNDED ACTIVITIES

The County of Ventura has prepared the FY 2016-17 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) in accordance with requirements of the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The CAPER covers activities funded during the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Urban County Entitlement Program, the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program, and the HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME). HUD uses this report to assess implementation of the 2015-19 Consolidated Plan goals and FY 2016-17 Annual Action Plan activities, which provide maximum benefit to low-moderate income persons.

Activities funded include housing rehabilitation and construction, public facilities improvements, fair housing, and other public services located in the cities of Fillmore, Moorpark, Ojai, Port Hueneme, and Santa Paula and within the unincorporated areas of Ventura County.

The CAPER is available for review online at http://www.ventura.org/community-development/hudreports or in person during normal business hours at the County Executive Office, 800 S. Victoria Avenue, Admin Bldg 4th floor, Ventura.

Comments on the CAPER should be directed in writing to Community Development at the above address or via e-mail to Community.Development@ventura.org no later than 5 p.m., Monday, September 11, 2017.

CR-45 - CDBG 91.520(c)

Specify the nature of, and reasons for, any changes in the jurisdiction's program objectives and indications of how the jurisdiction would change its programs as a result of its experiences.

Several projects experienced funding reprogramming throughout the year, as evidenced by the Amended Action Plan. The largest change was the defunding of Cabrillo Economic Development's (CEDC) Bridgeview project, which had received a substantial allocation of both CDBG and HOME funds. Unfortunately, the excessive costs and regulations associated with construction of affordable housing, including the extremely competitive environment for Tax Credit Allocations and highly restrictive funding commitment deadlines for HOME, have caused CEDC to cancel plans to move forward on what would have been about two dozen units of affordable rental housing, serving approximately 130 low/moderate income residents.

HELP of Ojai requested cancellation of funding for their Isolated Seniors Program after the first half of the year, citing overly arduous reporting requirements (particularly collecting race, ethnicity, and income data). The County has noticed these reporting requirements to be an increasing deterant to many potential subrecipients, most notably small non-profit organizations.

Some minor reprogramming was done within the small cities activities to greater meet their local needs.

The County continues to evaluate the reasons behind reprogramming needs to better allocate funds in future cycles. As evidenced with CEDC's cancelled Bridgeview development, a major obstacle has been identifying affordable housing projects that are able to move forward in a timely fashion. Such developments address an extremely high priority need, and we are committed to identifying those projects and subrecipients that can most efficiently use these funds. Additionally, the County is placing an increased emphasis on subrecipient capacity as related to CDBG reporting requirements.

Does this Jurisdiction have any open Brownfields Economic Development Initiative (BEDI) grants?

No

[BEDI grantees] Describe accomplishments and program outcomes during the last year.

CR-50 - HOME 91.520(d)

Include the results of on-site inspections of affordable rental housing assisted under the program to determine compliance with housing codes and other applicable regulations

Please list those projects that should have been inspected on-site this program year based upon the schedule in §92.504(d). Indicate which of these were inspected and a summary of issues that were detected during the inspection. For those that were not inspected, please indicate the reason and how you will remedy the situation.

Completion Inspections: Three (3) projects were substantially completed during Program Year 2015-16 and closed out in Program Year 2016-17. Inspections of each physical property and project files were performed. No monitoring findings were identified.

Ongoing Inspections of HOME-Assisted Housing: All completed HOME-assisted projects were reviewed as part of the annual desk monitoring process. On-site inspections are required of all projects every 3 years, with fourteen (14) inspections scheduled during the reporting period. The name of each property, inspection date and results of the inspections are provided below:

Casa Bella, 4/5/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Chapel Lane, 3/23/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Colina Vista, 3/22/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Harvard Court, 3/29/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Harvard Place Apartments, 3/8/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Montgomery Oaks, 3/13/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Rodney Fernandez Gardens I, 3/29/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Rodney Fernandez Gardens II, 3/29/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Summer Wind, 3/15/17, monitoring passed with corrective action required and completed.

Valle Naranjal, 3/15/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

WAV Place, 4/12/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.

Yale Street Apartments, 4/6/17, monitoring passed with no corrective actions identified.
Casa Esperanza y Suenos was scheduled for inspection on 4/26/17 and Richmond Terrace was scheduled on 5/23/17; however both inspections had to be rescheduled to accommodate staffing changes. Inspections of both properties will be completed before 10/31/17.

Provide an assessment of the jurisdiction's affirmative marketing actions for HOME units. 92.351(b)

All HOME subrecipients are required to adopt affirmative marketing procedures for any HOME-assisted housing project(s). Subrecipients are also required to report annually on their affirmative marketing activities.

During the reporting period, a variety of methods were used to reach out to potential beneficiaries of the HOME program including: posting of the Fair Housing Poster and Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan in offices; display of the HUD approved Equal Housing Opportunity logo at the entrance to HOME-assisted properties and on all materials for public distribution related to the property(ies); coordination with civic and community contacts/organizations to promote the housing opportunity to low-income households and any populations identified as under-served; and advertising in electronic and print media.

Refer to IDIS reports to describe the amount and use of program income for projects, including the number of projects and owner and tenant characteristics

During the reporting period (the federal fiscal year), program income in the total amount of \$15,464.69 was expended on two HOME-assisted affordable projects that were in development.

Describe other actions taken to foster and maintain affordable housing. 91.220(k) (STATES ONLY: Including the coordination of LIHTC with the development of affordable housing). 91.320(j)

Because the development of affordable housing is a lengthy process, there are currently 4 HOMEassisted projects in various stages of development. Three projects were substantially completed during Program Year 2015-16 and were completed per 24 CFR 92.2 in FY16-17.

Two projects are currently under construction and two projects are in pre-development. These projects will collectively result in 85 new units of affordable housing available to lower income households in our community, of which 22 will be HOME-assisted.

The County of Ventura partners with local housing authorities and private developers to promote and develop affordable housing in the community. The HOME funds available for the development of affordable housing are often used by developers to leverage other financing, including Low Income Housing Tax Credits, private investments, state and local funds.

In May of 2015, the County Board of Supervisors approved a one-time appropriation of \$1 million in matching funds for the development of affordable housing for farmworkers in the County. In February of 2016, three projects were approved for funding which will result in 71 units of affordable, rental housing restricted to farmworker households, 12 units of farmworker housing without income restrictions and 62 unrestricted units of unrestricted rental housing. Of the 71 affordable farmworker units, 40 will be low-income, 27 will be very low-income and 4 will be extremely low-income. The developments are currently in pre-development and are expected to start construction in program year 17-18 or 18-19.

CR-60 - ESG 91.520(g) (ESG Recipients only)

ESG Supplement to the CAPER in *e-snaps*

For Paperwork Reduction Act

1. Recipient Information—All Recipients C	Complete		
Basic Grant Information Recipient Name	VENTURA COUNTY		
Organizational DUNS Number	066691122		
EIN/TIN Number	956000944		
Indentify the Field Office	LOS ANGELES		
Identify CoC(s) in which the recipient or subrecipient(s) will provide ESG assistance	San Buena Ventura/Ventura County CoC		
ESG Contact Name			
Prefix	Ms		
First Name	Jennifer		
Middle Name	0		
Last Name	Harkey		
Suffix	0		
Title	Program Analyst		
ESG Contact Address			
Street Address 1	800 S. Victoria Ave. L#1940		
Street Address 2	0		
City	Ventura		
State	CA		
ZIP Code	93003-		
Phone Number	8056584342		
Extension	0		
Fax Number	0		
Email Address	Jennifer.Harkey@ventura.org		
ESG Secondary Contact			
Prefix	Ms		
First Name	Tara		
Last Name	Carruth		
Suffix	0		
Title	Management Analyst		
Phone Number	8056543838		
Extension	0		
Email Address	Tara.Carruth@ventura.org		
	CADER		

2. Reporting Period—All Recipients Complete

Program Year Start Date	07/01/2016
Program Year End Date	06/30/2017

3a. Subrecipient Form – Complete one form for each subrecipient

Subrecipient or Contractor Name: Ventura County - Human Services Agency City: Ventura State: CA Zip Code: 93003, 5405 DUNS Number: Is subrecipient a victim services provider: N Subrecipient Organization Type: Unit of Government ESG Subgrant or Contract Award Amount: 400000

CR-65 - Persons Assisted

4. Persons Served

4a. Complete for Homelessness Prevention Activities

Number of Persons in	Total
Households	
Adults	
Children	
Don't Know/Refused/Other	
Missing Information	
Total	

Table 16 – Household Information for Homeless Prevention Activities

4b. Complete for Rapid Re-Housing Activities

Number of Persons in	Total
Households	
Adults	
Children	
Don't Know/Refused/Other	
Missing Information	
Total	

Table 17 – Household Information for Rapid Re-Housing Activities

4c. Complete for Shelter

Number of Persons in	Total
Households	
Adults	
Children	
Don't Know/Refused/Other	
Missing Information	
Total	

Table 18 – Shelter Information

4d. Street Outreach

Number of Persons in	Total
Households	
Adults	
Children	
Don't Know/Refused/Other	
Missing Information	
Total	

Table 19 – Household Information for Street Outreach

4e. Totals for all Persons Served with ESG

Number of Persons in	Total
Households	
Adults	
Children	
Don't Know/Refused/Other	
Missing Information	
Total	

Table 20 – Household Information for Persons Served with ESG

5. Gender—Complete for All Activities

Total

Table 21 – Gender Information

6. Age—Complete for All Activities

	Total
Under 18	
18-24	
25 and over	
Don't Know/Refused/Other	
Missing Information	
Total	

Table 22 – Age Information

7. Special Populations Served—Complete for All Activities

Subpopulation	Total	Total Persons Served – Prevention	Total Persons Served – RRH	Total Persons Served in Emergency Shelters
Veterans				
Victims of Domestic Violence				
Elderly				
HIV/AIDS				
Chronically Homeless				
Persons with Disabi	lities:	L.	L.	
Severely Mentally Ill				
Chronic Substance Abuse				
Other Disability				
Total (unduplicated if possible)				

Number of Persons in Households

Table 23 – Special Population Served

CR-70 – ESG 91.520(g) - Assistance Provided and Outcomes

10. Shelter Utilization

Number of New Units - Rehabbed	0
Number of New Units - Conversion	0
Total Number of bed-nights available	0
Total Number of bed-nights provided	0
Capacity Utilization	0.00%

Table 24 – Shelter Capacity

11. Project Outcomes Data measured under the performance standards developed in consultation with the CoC(s)

The Ventura County CoC did not receive County ESG funds during fiscal year 2016-17 and therefore, no emergency shelter beds were ESG funded during the reporting period of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. However, the County did receive State ESG through the Housing and Community Development department which is reported by the State to HUD.

CR-75 – Expenditures

11. Expenditures

11a. ESG Expenditures for Homelessness Prevention

	Dollar Amount of Expenditures in Program Year		
	2014	2015	2016
Expenditures for Rental Assistance	0	0	0
Expenditures for Housing Relocation and			
Stabilization Services - Financial Assistance	0	4,271	2,300
Expenditures for Housing Relocation &			
Stabilization Services - Services	0	5,500	6,300
Expenditures for Homeless Prevention under			
Emergency Shelter Grants Program	0	0	0
Subtotal Homelessness Prevention	0	9,771	8,600

Table 25 – ESG Expenditures for Homelessness Prevention

11b. ESG Expenditures for Rapid Re-Housing

	Dollar Amount of Expenditures in Program Year			
	2014	2015	2016	
Expenditures for Rental Assistance	0	13,886	6,160	
Expenditures for Housing Relocation and				
Stabilization Services - Financial Assistance	0	0	0	
Expenditures for Housing Relocation &				
Stabilization Services - Services	0	11,000	6,740	
Expenditures for Homeless Assistance under				
Emergency Shelter Grants Program	0	0	0	
Subtotal Rapid Re-Housing	0	24,886	12,900	

Table 26 – ESG Expenditures for Rapid Re-Housing

11c. ESG Expenditures for Emergency Shelter

	Dollar Amount	of Expenditures in	n Program Year
	2014	2015	2016
Essential Services	0	13,802	0
Operations	0	56,000	0
Renovation	0	0	0
Major Rehab	0	0	0
Conversion	0	0	0
Subtotal	0	69,802	0

Table 27 – ESG Expenditures for Emergency Shelter

11d. Other Grant Expenditures

	Dollar Amount	of Expenditures in	n Program Year
	2014	2015	2016
Street Outreach	0	0	0
HMIS	0	0	0
Administration	0	10,240	0

Table 28 - Other Grant Expenditures

11e. Total ESG Grant Funds

Total ESG Funds Expended	2014	2015	2016
	0	114,699	21,500

Table 29 - Total ESG Funds Expended

11f. Match Source

	2014	2015	2016
Other Non-ESG HUD Funds	0	69,802	0
Other Federal Funds	0	0	0
State Government	0	0	0
Local Government	0	18,157	21,500
Private Funds	0	0	0
Other	0	16,500	0
Fees	0	0	0
Program Income	0	0	0
Total Match Amount	0	104,459	21,500

Table 30 - Other Funds Expended on Eligible ESG Activities

11g. Total

Total Amount of Funds Expended on ESG Activities	2014	2015	2016
	0	219,158	43,000

Table 31 - Total Amount of Funds Expended on ESG Activities

Attachment

Attachment 1 - Summary of Accomplishments

County of Ventura Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report Attachment 1

Highlights from this year include the following accomplishments:

<u>CDBG</u>

Programs included activities in support of Affordable Housing, Homeless Services, Housing Rehabilitation, Code Enforcement, Small Business & Micro Enterprise Technical Assistance, Public Infrastructure, Senior Services, Public Facilities, Planning and Administration, and Fair Housing Services. A summary of the status of each project is included below.

- Moorpark Community Service Center (Moorpark Pantry Plus): This program provides essential safety net services and special outreach programs for low-income individuals in the Moorpark area. Services provided include new shoes, backpacks and supplies for school children, holiday food boxes, income tax assistance, special holiday events, and rent and utility payment assistance (from private funding), as well as routine food and clothing assistance. 2,606 persons were served, which was 88% of the 2,962 person goal.
- County of Ventura Human Services Agency Homeless Services Program: This program provides countywide outreach and case management services for homeless and at-risk of homeless persons, assisting them to move from crisis situations into housing. 471 of a proposed 360 persons were served during the program year.
- El Patio Hotel: This facility offers single-room, furnished efficiency studios for individuals who are disabled, chronically homeless, and/or very low-income, providing a combination of supportive services along with permanent affordable housing creating an environment where formerly homeless individuals become stable in housing and continually increase their independence and self-sufficiency. A total of 35 persons were served during the year, which is 130% of the 27 person goal.
- Turning Point Our Place Safe Haven: This emergency shelter serves homeless and mentally ill persons. Providing 10 beds and 24 hour staffing, clients are connected to services while staff work to find permanent housing options. This year, 18 of the projected 18 persons were served.
- Preserve a Home: This program reaches out to owner occupied low- and very lowincome families and individuals that have home rehabilitation needs and otherwise are

not able to perform the work on their own or pay full cost for a general contractor, and is essential in preserving the County's aging affordable housing supply. During the year, 8 of the proposed 8 households were served, meeting the program's goals.

- Code Enforcement: The Cities of Port Hueneme and Santa Paula both received 2016-17 funds to administer their code enforcement programs, while the City of Fillmore used unspent prior year allocations as well as reallocated, unspent 2016-17 Fire Engine funds to continue its program. A total of 942 violations were issued over the course of the year, with 922 of the violations being corrected.
- Micro Business Development Program: Women's Economic Ventures assists individuals in developing skills to start a business of their own. Programs include a 14-week Self Employment Training (SET) course in English, and two Spanish-language programs; a 10week SET course and a 4-week Business Basics course. During the program year a total of 11 businesses were assisted, representing 73% of the 15-business goal.
- Senior Activities: The cities of Port Hueneme and Santa Paula provide senior center based activities for low-income seniors in their communities. Activities include meals, health services, legal assistance, tax advice, exercise programs and other social services. During the year a total of 841 seniors were served, which is 61% of the projected 1,375 persons. HELP of Ojai also provided a program for Isolated Senior Support, visiting a total of 605 seniors during the first six months of 2016-17.
- Long Term Care Ombudsman: The Ombudsman regularly makes unscheduled, unannounced visits to elderly persons living in long-term care facilities to investigate complaints and resolve issues on behalf of residents. This year, 1,162 of a projected 750 residents were served, representing 155% of our goal.
- Fire Engines: Both cities of Santa Paula and Fillmore received funding for lease payments of a new fire engines, enabling their departments to provide improved critical emergency fire and medical services to their communities. A total of 48,045 residents benefit from this equipment.
- Help of Ojai Little House Rehabilitation: Funds will be used to rehabilitate the kitchen, meeting room, and restrooms of the Little House senior activity center, which also serves as an Emergency Cooling location. During the year a contractor was selected, but a contract has not yet been signed pending final approval by the City of Ojai (conditional approval has been obtained).
- FOOD Share Solar Panel Installation: Installation of a 200kW solar energy system will provide electrical power to the warehouse and office facility. Savings are estimated to be over \$25,000 annually for the 25 year lifespan of the system. System design has been completed, and the construction is expected to be bid in October 2017. Once complete, a total of 28,342 FOOD Share clients are expected to benefit from this activity annually.
- Planning, Administration, and Fair Housing Services: Administration allowance funds

were used to provide administration and compliance guidance for CDBG and HOME activities, including technical support to subrecipients. Funds were also used for the County's fair housing services program, which is administered by a consultant.

Additionally, a number of CDBG funded projects were carried over from prior years:

- Fillmore Fire Squad Truck: Funds were used to purchase and outfit a new fire squad truck, which has enabled the department to provide improved critical fire and emergency medical services to the Fillmore community, of which 75% are low/mod income residents. A total of 16,835 residents will benefit from this equipment.
- Citricos de Santa Paula Site Demolition: CDBG-funded demolition has been completed, and construction of the new 11-unit apartment complex is underway. Completion is expected in October 2017. This activity will be reported as complete once the units are fully occupied and beneficiary data is available.
- Sarzotti Park BBQ Area Renovation: This project, completed in February 2017, included replacing deteriorated asphalt beneath picnic areas with concrete, and provided ADA accessible sidewalks and canopies over the picnic tables to provide shade as well as rain protection. A total of 3,825 residents will benefit from these improvements.
- Veteran's Park Restroom Renovation: This project is a complete remodel of the interior and exterior of the existing 1970's Santa Paula park restrooms. After experiencing several delays, the contractor completed work in July 2017. Once a Notice of Completion is recorded, beneficiaries will be reported and the project will be closed in IDIS. A total of 31,210 residents in Santa Paula will benefit from the improved facilities.
- The County's Horizon View Mental Health Rehabilitation Center was completed and licensed in December 2016, providing 16 beds for inpatient treatment. Horizon View serves clients with serious mental illnesses and/or co-occurring disorder of serious mental illness and substance dependency.

<u>HOME</u>

In FY16-17, the County reserved HOME funding for the development of two affordable housing projects, Rancho Verde and the Ormond Beach Villas (previously known as the Vista Pacifica Apartments). Because the development of affordable housing is a lengthy process, neither of the projects were completed during the same reporting cycle. A summary of the status of each project is included below.

- Rancho Verde: New construction apartment complex with 24 units, including two HOME-assisted units. Construction is expected to begin in March of 2018 and the property is expected to be fully leased in late 2019/early 2020.
- Ormond Beach Villas: New construction apartment complex with 40 units, including five

HOME-assisted units. Construction is expected to begin in January of 2018 and the property is expected to be fully leased before the end of 2019.

Three (3) HOME-assisted projects funded during previous years were substantially completed during the previous reporting period (Program Year 2015-16) and completed and closed-out per 24 CFR 92.2 in Program Year 2016-17, providing 12 HOME-assisted units of rental housing for very low-income households and 4 HOME-assisted units of homeowner housing for very low-income households (total HOME-assisted and non-HOME-assisted of 26 units). Two more projects funded with HOME funding in previous years are currently in development and will add fifteen (15) units of new HOME-assisted rental housing (total HOME-assisted and non-HOME-assisted assisted and non-HOME-assisted assisted assisted and non-HOME-assisted assisted assiste

All of the HOME-assisted developments further the Regional Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan goals of increasing the availability of affordable housing.

<u>ESG</u>

The Ventura County Continuum of Care did not receive County ESG funds during FY16-17; however, funding of homeless prevention services to persons at-risk of becoming homeless and rapid re-housing services for the homeless were extended from the prior fiscal year. A summary of the status of each funded activity is provided below.

• County of Ventura Human Services Agency Homeless Services Program: 25 people were assisted with Rapid Re-Housing assistance and 19 people were assisted with homeless prevention assistance. This program provides rental assistance and supportive services.

Attachment 2 - PR 26

	Office of community Planning and Development	DATE:	09-27-17
	U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development	TIME:	16:10
×	Integrated Disburscment and Information System	PAGE:	1
~	PR26 - CDBG Tinancial Summary Report		
	Program Year 2016		
	VENTURA COUNTY, CA		

PART I: SUMMARY OF COBG RESOURCES	
01 UNEXPENDED CDD3 FUNDS AT END OF PREVIDUS PROGRAM YEAR	1,000,861.57
02 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	1,561,260,00
03 SURPLUS URBAN RENEWAL	(,,,)
SECTION 108 GUARANTEED LOAN FUNDS	00.0
05 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	115,363.39
054 CURRENT YEAR SECTION 108 PROGRAM INCOME (FOR SI TYPE)	110,000,000
06 UNDS RETURNED TO THE LINE-OF-CREDIT	0.00
06a FUNDS RETURNED TO THE LOCAL COBG ACCOUNT	0.00
07 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AVAILABLE	0.90 0.90
08 TOTAL AVALLABLE (SUM, LINES 01-07)	2,677,504.96
PART II: SUMMARY OF COBG EXPENDITURES	-10111251138
09 DISBURSEMENTS OTHER THAN SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS AND PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	905,285.00
10 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENETT	ůc.ů
11 AMOUNT SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT (LINE 09 + LINE 10)	905,285/00
12 DISEURSED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	312,252.01
13 DISCURSED IN 1015 FOR SECTION 108 REPAYMENTS	0.00
14 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL EXPENDITURES	0.00
15 TOTAL EXPENDITURES (SUN, LINES 11-14)	· , 217,5 37.u)
16 UNEXPENDED BALANCE (LINE 08 - LINE 15)	1,459,967.96
PART III: LOWMOD BENEFIT THIS REPORTING PERIOD	21 B
17 EXPENDED FOR LOW/MOD HOUSING IN SPECIAL AREAS	nn
18 LXPLNOLD FOR LOW, MOD MULTI-UNIT HOUSING	54,031.69
19 DISBURSED FOR OTHER LOW/MOD ACTIVITIES	650,365.18
20 ADDISTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL LOW/MODI CREDIT	nn
21 TOTAL LOW/MOD CREDIT (SUM, LINES 17-20)	704,396.87
22 PERCENT LOW/MOD CREDIT (LINE 11/LINE 11)	77.91%
LOW/MOD BENEFIT FOR MULTI-YEAR CERTIFICATIONS	
23 PRÓGRAM YEARS(PY) COVERED IN CERTIFICATION	PY: 2016 PY: PY:
24 CUMULATIVE NET EXPENDITURES SUBJECT TO LOW/MOD BENEFIT CALCULATION	905,285,00
25. CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURES BENEFITING LOW/MOD PERSONS	704,396.87
26 PERCENT BENEFIT TO LOW/MOD PERSONS (LINE 25,LINE 24)	77.81%
PART IV: PUBLIC SERVICE (PS) CAP CALCULATIONS	
27 DISEURSED IN TDIS FOR PUBLIC SERVICES	233,627.38
28 PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR	00.0
29 PS UNLIQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
30 ADHISTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS	n.an
31. TOTAL PS OBLIGATIONS (LINE 27 + LINE 28 - LINE 29 + LINE 39)	233,627.38
32 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	1,561,260.00
33 PRIOR YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	46,573.24
34 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PS CAP	00.0
35 TOTAL SUBJECT TO FS CAP (SUM, LINES 32-34)	1,657,783.24
36 PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PS ACTIVITIES (LINE 37)	14.09%
PART V: PLANNING AND ADMINISTRATION (PA) CAP	
37 DISBURGED IN IDIS FOR PLANNING/ADMINISTRATION	312,252.00
38 PA UNI TQUITDATED OBI IGATIONS AT END OF CURRENT PROGRAM YEAR	ÚU-Ú
39 PA UNILQUIDATED OBLIGATIONS AT END OF PREVIOUS PROGRAM YEAR	0.00
40 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS	00.0
4" TOTAL PA OBLIGATIONS (LINE 37 + LINE 38 - LINE 39 + LINE 40)	312,252.00
42 ENTITLEMENT GRANT	1,561,260.50
43 CURRENT YEAR PROGRAM INCOME	115,363.39
44 ADJUSTMENT TO COMPUTE TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP	Ú/JÚ
45 TOTAL SUBJECT TO PA CAP (SUM, LINES 42-44)	_,676,643.39
46 PERCENT FUNDS OBLIGATED FOR PA ACTIVITIES (LINE 41/LINE 45)	18.52%

	Office of Community Planning and Development	DATE:	09-27-17
	U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development	TIME:	16:10
×	Integrated Disbursement and Information System	PAGE:	2
~	PR26 - CDBG Tinancial Summary Report		
	Program Year 2016		
	VENTURA COUNTY, CA		

LINE 17 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 17

Report returned no data.

LINE 18 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES TO CONSIDER IN DETERMINING THE AMOUNT TO ENTER ON LINE 16

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Activity Name	Mabrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2015	3	1748	SPHA - Citricos de Santa Paula Demo	04	LMH	\$54,031.69
				04	Matrix Code	\$54,031.69
Total						\$54,031.69

LINE 19 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 19

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2014	5	1709	6015196	FOOD Share - Solar Panel Project	03	LMC	55,595.40
2014	5	1709	6077613	FOOD Share - Solar Panel Project	03	LMC	\$12,728.78
					03	Mabrix Code	\$24,324.18
2013	6	1724	6042796	Santa Paula Veterah's Park Restrooms Rehab	03F	LMA	\$16,968.22
2013	6	1724	6057588	Santa Paula Veteran's Park Restronms Rehab	03F	LMA	\$14,802.69
2013	6	1/21	607/613	Santa Paula Veteran's Park Restrooms Rehab	031	LMA	\$4,600.38
2015	5	1750	5985614	OJAI Sarzotti Park BBQ Area Renovation	03F	LMA	\$80,904.00
					D3F	Matrix Code	\$119,295.29
2015	4	1745	6022839	FILLMORE Fire Squad Truck Replacement	030	LMA	54,156.75
2016	1	1/5/	6005129	FILLMORE - FIRE ENGINE PEPLACEMEN	030	LMA	\$56,791.40
2016	4	1770	6015198	SANTA PAULA - Fire Engine	030	LMA	\$31,694.86
2016	4	1770	6042796	SANTA PAULA Fire Engine	030	LMA	\$31,694.86
				Contract of the Contractor - Contract - Contract - Contractor	030	Matrix Code	5124,337.87
2016	7	1758	5993898	CATEDLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	03T	LMC	56,028.31
2016	7	1758	6005109	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MOORPARK	03T	LMC	\$3,401.14
2016	7	1758	6015196	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	UST	LMC	\$1,813.62
2016	7	1758	6042796	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	03T	LMC	\$3,391.56
2016	7	1758	6057588	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MOORPARK	03T	LMC	\$3,989.51
2016	7	1758	6077613	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	UST	LMC	\$1,375.86
2016	1	1759	5993898	HS4 - HOMELESS SERVICES PROSPAM	031	LMC	\$22,940.00
2016	7	1759	60/0510/9	HSA - HOMFLESS SERVICES PROSEAM	03T	LMC	\$17,560.00
2016	7	1761	5993898	People's Self Help Housing El Patio	03T	LMC	\$2,418.27
2016	,	1/51	6015196	People's Self Help Housing - El Patio	031	LMC	53,917.58
2016	7	1751	6031076	People's Self Help Housing - El Patio	03T	LMC	54,838.34
2016	7	1761	6077613	People's Self Help Housing El Patio	03T	LMC	58,795.81
2016	1	1/52	5997069	TURNING POINT Our Place Safe Haven	031	LMC	\$30,000.00
2016	7	1752	6005129	TURNING POINT Our Place Safe Haven	03T	LMC	\$15,000.00
2016	7	1762	6073319	TURNING POINT Our Place Safe Haven	03T	LMC	59,798.0
					03T	Matrix Code	5135,298.00
2016	<u>e</u>	1756	5985614	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	05A	LMC	\$11,330.60
2016	9	1756	6031076	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	054	LMC	(10,601.45
2016	0	1756	6042796	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	OSA	LMC	\$0,623.07
2016	4	1756	6057588	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	05A	LMC	\$3,444.88
2016	Ģ	1760	6005109	HELP of Ojai - Isolated Senior Support	05A	LMC	(10,734.11
2016	0	1768	60.05129	PORT FUENEME - Senior Programs	OSA	LMC	\$18,120.33
2016	ç	1758	6015196	PORT FUENEME - Senior Programs	05A	LMC	56,072.76
2016	9	1768	6077613	PORT FUENEME - Senior Programs	054	IMC	<5,806.91
2016	ő	1771	6015196	SANTA PAULA Senior Center Condinator	USA	LMC	\$6,693.39
2016	ç	1771	6042796	SANTA PAULA - Senior Center Coordinato	05A	LMC	\$11,767.02
2016	9	1771	6057588	SANTA PAULA - Senior Center Coordinator	05A	IMC	\$2,111.06
2016	0	1771	6077613	SANTA PAULA Senior Center Coordinator	USA	LMC	\$2,023.80
	-				054	Mabrix Code	\$98,329.38

>	۲.			 Department of Hausing and Urban Development ntegrated Diabursement and Information System PR26 - CDBG Tinancial Summary Report Program Year 2016 		TIME: PAGE:	16:1
				VENTURA COUNTY, CA			
Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2016	13	1764	5993898	Habitat Preserve A Homa	14A	TMH	\$13,368.07
2016	13	1764	6031-)76	Hubitzt Preserve A Home	14A	LMH	\$64,478.27
2016	13	1754	6077613	Habitat Preserve A Home	14A	LMH	\$30,934.12
					144	Matrix Code	\$108,780.46
016	6	1763	5993898	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	18C	LMC	\$13,430.43
2016	6	1763	60-05129	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	18C	LMC	\$4,461.20
2016	6	1753	6015196	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	18C	LMC	s2,508.94
2016	6	1763	6072839	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	180	LMC	\$ 7,777.7 7
2016	6	1763	6031-)76	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	18C	LMC	s2,941.18
2016	6	1753	6057588	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	18C	LMC	\$6,844.69
VU16	6	1763	6077613	WEV Micro-Business Development Program	18C	LMC	\$7,091.29
					180	Matrix Code	\$40,000.00
Total							\$650,365.18

LINE 27 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 27

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2016	1	1758	5993898	CATEDLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	031	LMC	\$5,078.31
2016	7	1758	60/05129	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	03T	LMC	\$3.401.14
2016	7	1758	6015196	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	03T	LMC	\$1,813.52
2016	1	1758	6042796	CATEDLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	031	LMC	\$3,391.56
2016	7	1758	6057588	CATHOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	03T	LMC	\$3.989.51
2016	7	1758	6077613	CATEOLIC CHARITIES MODRPARK	03T	LMC	\$1,375.86
2016	1	1759	5993898	HSA - HOMELLES SERVICES PROGPAM	031	LMC	\$23,940.00
2016	7	1759	60/05129	HSA - HOMELESS SERVICES PROGRAM	03T	LMC	\$17,560.00
2016	7	1761	5993898	People's Self Help Housing - El Patio	D3T	LMC	\$2,418.27
2016	7	1751	6015196	People's Self Help Lousing - El Patio	03T	LMC	\$3,947.55
2016	7	1751	6031076	People's Self Help Housing - El Patio	03T	LMC	\$1,838.34
2016	7	1761	6077613	People's Self Help Housing - El Patio	D3T	LMC	\$8,795.81
2016	7	1762	5997069	TURNING POINT OUR Place Safe Haven	037	LMC	\$30,000.00
2016	7	1752	60/05129	TURNING POINT Our Place Safe Haven	03T	LMC	\$15,509.09
2016	7	1762	6073319	TURNING POINT Our Place Safe Haven	D3T	LMC	\$9,798.90
					03T	Matrix Code	\$135,298.00
2016	9	1756	5985614	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	05A	LMC	\$11,330.50
2016	9	1756	6031076	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	05A	LMC	\$10.601.45
2016	9	1756	6042796	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	05A	LMC	\$9,623.07
2016	9	1756	6057588	LONG TERM CARE OMBUDSMAN	05A	LMC	\$3,444.65
2016	9	1750	60/05129	HELP of Ojai - Isolated Senior Support	05A	LMC	\$10.734.11
2016	Ģ	1768	60-)5129	PORT FUENEME - Senior Programs	05A	LMC	\$16,120.33
2016	9	1758	6015196	PORT FUENEME - Senior Programs	05A	LMC	\$3,072.76
2016	9	1758	6077613	PORT FUENEME - Senior Programs	05A	LMC	\$5.806.91
2016	Ģ	1771	6015196	SANTA PAULA - Senior Center Coordinator	05A	LMC	\$5,603.30
2016	9	1771	6042796	SANTA PAULA - Sunior Center Coordinator	05A	LMC	\$11,757.02
2016	9	1771	6057598	SANTA PAULA - Senior Center Coordinator	05A	LMC	\$2,111.06
2016	ç	1771	6077613	SANTA PAULA - Senior Center Chardinator	05A	LMC	\$2,023.60
					05A	Matrix Code	\$98,329.38
Total							\$233,627.38

LINE 37 DETAIL: ACTIVITIES INCLUDED IN THE COMPUTATION OF LINE 37

Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Natrix Code	National Objective	Drawn Amount
2016	1	1757	5985614	COUNTY - CDBG Program Admin	21A		\$49,218.34
2016	1	1757	6015196	COUNTY - CDBG Program Admin	21A		\$112.034.84

>	•		0.5	Office of Community Planning and Development 5. Department of Housing and Urban Development rtegrated Diabursement and Information System PR26 - CDBG Tinancial Summary Report Program Year 2016 VENTURA COUNTY , CA		DATE: TIME: PAGE:	09-27-1 16:1
l Plan Year	IDIS Project	IDIS Activity	Voucher Number	Activity Name	Matrix Code	National Objective	Drewn Amount
2016	1	1757	6031076	COUNTY - CDBG Program Admin	21A		\$53,250,00
2016	1	1757	6073319	COUNTY - CDBG Program Admin	21A		\$22,026.54
					21A	Matrix Code	5242,561.71
2016	2	1755	5993898	HOUSING RIGHTS CENTER Fair Housing Program	21D		\$16,792.65
2016	2	1755	6072839	HOUSING RIGHTS CENTER Fair Housing Program	2113		\$4.280.23
2016	2	1755	6031-)76	HOUSING RIGHTS CENTER Fair Housing Program	21D		\$169.12
					21D	Mabrix Code	\$21,271.00
2016	1	1773	6073319	COUNTY - HOME Program Admin	21H		\$48,418.28
					21H	Matrix Code	\$49,419.29
Total							\$312,252.00

Attachment 3 - Proof of Public Posting

Certificate of Publication

Ad #1727532

In Matter of Publication of:

Public Notice

State of California)

))§ County of Ventura)

I, Maria Rodriguez, hereby certify that the Ventura County Star Newspaper has been adjudged a newspaper of general circulation by the Superior Court of California, County of Ventura within the provisions of the Government Code of the State of California, printed in the City of Irwindale, for circulation in the County of Ventura, State of California; that I am a clerk of the printer of said paper; that the annexed clipping is a true printed copy and publishing in said newspaper on the following dates to wit:

Aug. 26, 2017

I, Maria Rodriguez certify under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing is true and correct.

Dated this Aug. 28, 2017; in Camarillo, California, County of Ventura.

Maria Rodriguez (Signature)

NOTICE OF DOCUMENT AVAIL-ABILITY COUNTY OF VENTURA DRAFT FY 2016-17 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR ODBQ, ESG & HOME FUND-ED ACTIVITIES

ED ACTIVITIES The County of Ventura has prepared the FY 2016-17 Consolidated Annual Performancy and Evaluation Report (CAPER) in accordance with requirements of the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The CAPER covers activities funded during the period of July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Urban County Entitlement Program, County Entitlement Program, Grant (ESG) Program, and

the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program, and the HOME Investment Partmerships Program (HOME). HUD uses this report to assess implementation of the 2015-19 Consolidated Plan goals and FY 2016-17 Annual Action Plan activities, which provide maximum benefit to low-imoderate income persons.

Activities funded include housing rehabilitation and construction, public facilities improvements, fair housing, and other public services located in the cities of Fillmore. Moorpark, Ojai, Port Hueneme, and Santa Paula and within the unincorporated areas of Ventura County.

The CAPER is available for review online at http://www. ventura.org/community-dewelopment/hud-reports or in person during normal business hours at the County Executive Office, 800 S. Victoria Avenue, Admin Bidg 4th floor, Ventura.

Comments on the CAPER should be directed in writing to Community Development at the above address or via e-mail to Community.Developmentewventura.org no later than 5 p.m., Monday, September 11, 2027 8/26/17 CNS-3043963# VENTURA COUNTY STAR Ad No.1727532

* A U O O O O 4 5 3 9 6 2 5 *

Public Notices

Grant (ESG) Program, and the HOME Investment Part-nerships Program (HOME). HUD uses this report to assess implementation of the 2015-19 Consolidated Pian goals and FY 2016-17 Annual Action Plan activities, which provide max-imum benefit to low-moderate income persons.

Activities funded include housing rehabilitation and construction, public facilities improvements, fair housing, and ather public services located in the crites or fill-more, Moorpark, Ojal, Port Hueneme, and Santa Paula and within the unincorporated areas of Ventura County.

The CAPER is available for review online at http://www. ventura.org/community-de-velopment/hud-reports or in person during normal busi-ness hours at the County Executive Office, 800 S. Vic-toria Avenue, Admin Bidg 4th floor, Ventura.

Comments on the CAPER should be directed in writing

Find your next car here! Yent ara County Star Local fields ----**Public Notices**

CAPER

Public Notices

to Community Development at the above address or via e-mail to Community.Devel-opment@ventura.org no later than 5 p.m., Monday, Septem-ber 11, 2017. 8/26/17 CNS-3043963# VENTURA COUNTY STAR Ad No.1727532

Public Notices

NOTICE OF DOCUMENT AVAIL-ABILITY COUNTY OF VENTURA DRAFT FY 2016-17 ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR COBC, ESG & HOME FUND-ED ACTIVITIES

ED ACTIVITIES The County of Ventura has prepared the FY 2016-17 Con-solidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER) in accordance wills require-ments of the Department of Housing and Urban Develop-ment (HUD). The CAPER cov-ers activities funded during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2017, through the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Urban County Entitlement Program, County Entitlement Program. Public Notices

CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR	Azonte	01
	D New Fab D 40:554.05.65c das CDR Sta (mol Star) D Osana Serie to Law D Researce Hallows D Mold Road D Mold Read D Mold Rea	
	HUD Plans & Reports	
	FAR HOX SNG The Universe production and production by provide programmatic white induce backets by aparticipant HOX SAW 5 HOX	
	FOR KEY & AND FINY Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costabilitation Tails COLLEX.INE FINY Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costabilitation Tails Control (Tail) Finy Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costabilitation Tails Finy Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costabilitation Tails Finy Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costability Tails Finy Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costabilitation Tails Finy Via Company. The Parents & Development: Costability Tails Finy Via Company. Fin	
	Arman Arone Man The Science Information and approximation of the Cosmy's glasses uses of flows sorted p-peied of July 1 Briagn Arma Science Information and approximation of the Cosmy's glasses uses of flows sorted p-peied of July 1 Briagn Arma Science Information and Arman Arma	
	CONSIGNER AND INFORMATION ON NUMBER AND INFORMATION OF THE ADDRESS AND INFORMATION	
	Bardie seel Sensitiaanse Pade Revers Discussion Approximationum FY 201748	
	Avanuel Active Dire (J. v) (J. 2011) Binorghu June 30, 5913) 3 Avanuel Active Dire (J. v) (J. 2011) Binorghu June 30, 5913) 3	
	sortwards 11 2014/1 VCUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUTUT	
	NUTVELY + Unitable ≥ NUTVEL P1 2016-16	
	2015-114 Personal Convolution Plan and 2015-16 Annual Actors Plan (July 1, 2015 through Jame 30, 2016)	

Attachment 4 - HOME Annual Performance Report/Match Report

Annual Performance Report HOME Program

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Community Planning and Development OMB Approval No. 2506-0171 (exp 8/31/2009)

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 2.5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. This againcy may not conduct or sponsor, and a porson is not required to respond to a collection of information unless that collection displays a valid OMB control number.

The HOME statute imposes a significant number of data collection or intermediate unless that collected robusts a valid our programmetic analysis a valid our programmetic analysis a valid our programmetic analysis and valid our programmetic analysis. The information will be used: 1) to assist HOME participants in manging their programms; 2) to track performance of periticipants in meeting fund commitment and expenditors deadlines; 3) to permit HUD to determine with charactering of commitment and expenditors deadlines; 3) to permit HUD to determine whither each participant in meets the HOME statutory income tanget in distinguily requirements; and 4) to permit HUD to determine complement with or each participant HOME statutory income tanget and alterdaulity requirements; and 4) to permit HUD to determine complement with or each and regulatory program requirements. This data collection is autorized under the order statutory program requirements. This data collection is autorized under the crantston-Gonzalez National Affordable Housing Act or releated authorities. Access to Federal grant lunds is contingent on the reporting of certain project-specific data elements. Records of the cashes to the constition on the reporting of certain project-specific data elements. Records of information collected with an amount intermetion with the assisted or releated authorities. Access to Federal grant lunds is contingent on the reporting of grant statutory project-specific data elements. Records of information collected with as means the assisted collection information on and is generally available for disclosure. Recipients are responsible for ensuring confidentiality when public disclosure is not required.

This form is Intended to collect numeric cats to be aggregated nationally as a complement to data collected through the Cash and Management Information (C/MI) System. Participants should unter the reporting period in the first block. The reporting period is October 1 to September 30. Instructions are included for each section of further explanation is needed.

Submit this form on at before December 31.	This report a for perio	d (mm/dd/yyyy)	Date Submitted (nm/subsys)
Send one copy to the appropriate FILD Field Offlee and one copy to:	Starting	Ending	10-16-2017
HOME Program, Rm 7176, 451 7th Street, S.W., Washington D.C. 20410	1C-01-2016	09-30-2017	

1. Participant Number M-18-UC-06-0540	2. Partic carl Nama Ventura County (Par	rticipating Jurisciction)		
3. Name of Porson completing the Christy Meddeen	repurt	4 Phone Number (Incl) 805-654-2679	ide Arisa Cudej	
5. Address 800 South Victoria Avenue	L#1940	C. Ciy Ventura	7. Slate CA	8 Zlp Code 93009

Part II Program income

Enter the following program income amounts for the reporting pariod: in block 1, enter the balance on hand at the beginning; in block 2, enter the amount generated; in block 3, enter the amount expended; and in block 4, enter the amount for Tonant-Based route Assistance.

 Balance on harra at Beginning	 Amount received curing	 Total amount expended	 Amount expended for Tenant-	 Balance on hand silond of
of Reporting Ferrod	Reporting Period	puring Reporting Period	Based Rental Assistance	Reporting Paripa (1 + 2 - 3) = 5
\$15 464.69	\$45,373.00	\$15,464.69	\$0	\$45,373.00

Part III Minority Business Enterprises (MBE) and Women Business Enterprises (WBE)

			Minority dualness F	nterprises (VBF)		
	a, lotal	 Alesken Native or American Indian 	c, As shor Pacific Is ander	d, Black Non-Hispanic	a, Hispanic	, f. White Non-Hispanic
A. Contracts 1. Number	5	0	D	٥	0	5
2. Dollar Amount	\$9,245,370	0	o	0	o	\$9,245,370
B Sub-Contracts 1 Number	10	0	0	0	٥	10
2. Dollar Amount	\$2,962,060	0	0	٥	0	\$2,962,060
	a, Lotal	b. Womon Business Enterprisex (WBE)	c, Mae			
C. Contracts 1. Number	5	σ	5			
2. Dollar Alhount	\$9,245,370	O	\$9,245,370			
D. Sub-Contracts	10	0	:0			
2. Dullar Amounts	\$2,962,060	o	\$2,962,060			

page 1 of 2

form HUD-40107 (11/92)

Part IV Minority Owners of Rental Property In the table below, indicate the number of FCMC assisted rental property owners and the total dollar amount of HOME funds in these rental properties assisted during the reporting period.

Service and a service of the service			Minor ly Propi	erty Owners		
	B. Totol	b. Akiskan Native ur American Indian	c. Aalan or Pacific Islander	o, Black Non-Hispanic	e. Hispanić	I. White Non-Hispanic
1. Number	D	0	0	0	0	0
2. Dullar Amount	0	o	٥	a	o	U

Part V Relocation and Real Property Acquisition

indicate the number of parsons displaced, the dest of relocation payments, the number of parcels acquired, and the dest of sequisition. The data provided should rotteet only displacements and acquisitions occurring during the reporting period.

	a. Numbur	b. Cost
1. Percels Acquired	O	0
2. Businessos Displaced	o	D
3 Nonprofit Organizations Displaced	C	0
4. Households Temporerily Relocated, not Displaced	с	0
		Michaelto Burganer

			Minarily Business D	Interior see (MBE)		
Households Displaced	a, l'otal	 Alaskan Nativo or American holan 	c. Asian cr Facil c (slandur	d. Brack Nor-Hispania	e, Hissan a	 Wr.ia Non-Hispanic
5. Households Displaced - Number	D	0	0	0	0	٥
6 Households Displaced - Cost	0	0	0	0	с	D

page 2 of 2

form. HUD-40107 (11/92)

.

OMB App

HOME Match Report

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Office of Community Planning and Development.

OMB Approval No. 2506-0171 (exp. 08/31/2009)

I. Farticipart No. (assigned by HuD) 7. Name of the Participating Junisciction 3. Name of Contact Ipereon completing this report. 5. Stare Address of the Participating Arrivating	Part	Participant Identification	5				<u>ک</u> تر ۱	Match Contributions for Federal Fiscal Year (yyyy)	yy) 2016
et Address of the Participating Jurisdration 8. Oo S. Victoria Avenue, L#1940 8. So S. Victoria Avenue, L#1940 8. So S. Victoria Avenue, L#1940 Fical Year Summery Fical Year Summery Fical Year Summery 8. Zp Code 8. Zp Code 8. Zp Code 8. Sp So So 7, 928.60 9. Toral match available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Toral match available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch carried corrent Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current Federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 1 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 2 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 2 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 2 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch available for current federal fiscal year (into 2 + line 2) 9. Exauss natch	1. Fan	icipart No. (assigned by) M-16-UC-06-0540	(anH		nating Jurisciction unty			at (person completing th Madden	nis report)
Ventural 7. State 8. Zip Code Facal Year Sturmery Facal Year Sturmery Facal Year Sturmery Facal Year Sturmery 1 Excess match from prior Faceral fiscal year (1902 thru 9/30/16) \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	1.000	et Address of the Particip 800 S. Victoria Ave	oating Juri mue, L#	E				le number (include area -2679	codej
Fiscal Year Summary 1 Excess match from prior Faceral fiscal year (1992 thru 9/30/2016) \$19,894,476.15 2 Match Contributed during current Faceral fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 3 Toral match available for current Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 4 Match liability for current Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 5 Excuss onacch carried over to meat Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 6 Excuss onacch carried over to meat Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 6 Excuss onacch carried over to meat Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 7 Stack frees (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 8 Excuss onacch carried over to meat Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 8 Excuss onacch carried over to meat Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 9 Excuss onacch carried over to meat Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 10 2 Excuss onacch carri				State					
1 Excess match from prior Faceral fiscal year (1992 thru 9/30/2016) \$19,894,476.15 2 Match Contributed during current Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 3 Toral match available for current Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 4. Match liability for current Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 5. Excuss onacch carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 6. Excuss onacch carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 7. Excuss onacch carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 8. Excuss onacch carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 Altech carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 Altech carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 Altech carried over to next Faceral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 Match Contribution for the Facera fiscal year (inc 3 minus line 4) \$2,057,017	Part II	Fiscal Year Summary							and the second se
2 March Contributed during current Faderal fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 3 Toral match available for current Federal fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 4 Match liability for current Federal fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 5 Excuss natch readeral fiscal year (inc 1 + line 2) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 6 Match liability for current Federal fiscal year (inc 3 minus line 4) \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 7 Stated surger \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$2,057,928.60 8 Match not the Federal fiscal year (inc 3 minus line 4) \$1,050 \$2,057,928.60 \$2,057,928.60 Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year (inc 3 minus line 4) \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 Natch Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 Natch Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 \$1,050 Street \$1,212017		1. Excess match fro	am prior Fi	eceral fiscal year	(1992 thru 9/3)	0/2016)	\$19,85	94,476.15	1000000000000000
3 Total match lavalable for current. Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) 4. Match liability for current Federal fiscal year (ino 1 + line 2) 5. Exause nach carried over to next Federal fiscal year (ino 3 minus line 4) 6. Exause nach carried over to next Federal Fiscal Year (ino 3 minus line 4) Anatch liability for current Federal Fiscal Year (ino 3 minus line 4) (ino 3 minus line 4) Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 3. Casr. non- 4. Foregone 5. Apprelied 6. Required 7. Sit Prepertyton. 8. Bond Financine Oren ID 2 Date of Contribution 3.22/2017 \$3,444,000 8. Apprelied 6. Required 7. Sit Prepertyton. 8. Bond Financine Street 3/22/2017 \$3,244,000 1. Texes, tess. 8. Apprelied 7. Sit Prepertyton. 8. Bond Financine Extract \$3/22/2017 \$3,244,000 1. Texes, tess. Extract \$3/22/2017 \$3,244,000 1. Texes, tess. Extract \$3/22/2017 \$3/244,000 1.		2. Match Contribute	during b	surrent Hederal fiscal year	(see Part III.9.)		S2,05	57,928.60	「花田の記録」
4. Match liability for current Federal flacal year (ino 3 trinus line 4) 5. Excuss natch carried over to next Federal flacat year (ino 3 trinus line 4) Antch Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year (ino 3 trinus line 4) Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year (ino 3 trinus line 4) Match Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 4. Foregons Contribution for the Federal Fiscal Year 5. Class.prote Contribution 3. Class.prote Contribution 3.22/2017 \$3,444,000 1. Taxus Test Entrs 5. Apprelated Altered 3.22/2017 \$3,344,000 1. Taxus Test Entrs 5. Advinction			lable for c	urrent Federal fiscal year	(line 1 + line 2)		「「「「「「」」		\$21,952,404.75
6. Excuss natch carried over to next federal fiscal year (Fin 3 minus line 4) Match Contribution for the Faderal Fiscal Year Contribution Contribution Street 3/22/2017 \$3,444,000 entits			ourrent F	ederai fiscal year			and the second second	A States	\$60,823.77
Match Contribution for the Faderal Fiscal Year A. Everyone 6. Appraised 8. Suc Precention 8. Sond Financing eval No or 2. Date of contribution 3. Caser, non- infrashucture 4. Foregome 6. Required 7. Six Precention 8. Sond Financing Orier ID 2. Date of contribution 3. Caser, non- infrashucture 5. Appraised 6. Required 7. Six Precention 8. Sond Financing Orier ID 2. Contribution 3. Caser, non- infrashucture 5. Appraised 6. Required 7. Six Precention 8. Sond Financing Orier ID 2. Date of contribution 3. Caser, non- infrashucture 5. Contribution 1. Taxus, Frees, Changes 1. Property Domained bion 8. Sond Financing Street 3/22/2017 \$3,344,000 5. 1. Operty Domained bion 0. Leftits 2/32/2017 \$3,344,000 1. Operty 1. Operty 0. 0.		10.00	arried cvel	r to next f edera' fiscat year		4)			\$21,891,580.98
cert Noor 2. Date of Contribution 3. Casr. Trace, address 4. Foregone Taxes, frees, Contribution 6. Required Taxes, frees, Contribution 7. Six Presentation Constant Contribution 8. Bond Financing Constant Contribution Street 3/22/2017 \$3,444,000 5. 9.	PartIII	Match Contribution to	r the Fed	eral Fiscal Year					
Street 3/22/2017 \$3,444,000	÷.	other ID Con	batic of thribution	3. Cesr. (nor- 'èderal sources)	 Foregone Taxus, Fees, Charges 		7. Sit: Preperation. Construction materials. Donated labor		
	Walnut Apartm #1772	Street	2	\$3,444,000					\$2,057,928.60

G. (Rogional Dov/Community Devit acetal doresh/CMS_March reportsh-DME March Report 2016-16. doc

HOME Contractor: Walnut Apartments (T Bill rate as of 9/18/17)

HOME Contract # :

http://www.federalreserve.gov/releases/h15/current/

Deferred Payment BMIR. principal and interest due at torm

Program Grant Term Market return Expected return Interest (years)	Program Grant Term Market return Exi Interest (years)	Program Grant Term Market return Exi Interest (years)
Term (years)	Program Grant Term Interest (years rate (%)	Program Grant Term Interest (years rate (%)
Term (years	Program Grant Term Interest (years rate (%)	Program Grant Term Interest (years rate (%)
Program Grant Interest rate (%)	-	-
	Additional interest rate (%)	Market interest Additional rate (10-year interest T-bill) (%) rate (%)

REV. 1/30/04



Name of Project	Project Namber	Arnount of Contract	Amount of Subcontract	Type of Trade	Racial/Etheic Code	WBE	Section 3	Name of Cuntrattor	City of Contractor	Contractor
Citricas	1752		0005755	T	-	24	Yes	או א וונרכמו: המכיוק	Cerrenito	Winner
Gil-lize	.737		00.00002552 \$	-	1	N;	126	MV Mechanical and	Carcinteria	Samta Barberk
Nalr ut Family Apartments	2012	5 8,895,520.00		1	1	N	40	McCarthy Companies	Verture	Ventura
Waltur Family Apartments	<i>ctt</i> .		00'095'90. \$	1	1	2N2	No	B & R Fabrication	Ventura	Ventura
wather family startments	:772		5 27,783,00		1	No	٨a	Bonnor & Carpenter	Sarts Saug	Ventura
We hut Femily Scentronts	1772		5 1,454,172.00	• 1	-	S	No	FConstruction Corp.	Thousand Owley	Vientra #
Warm. Tamily Approximents	1777		\$ 8,693.00	.1	1	NN	No	Landrospe Development, no	Valencia	Los Argeles
We line Remit a Aportane rts	1772		24.2,500.00	• 1	T	40	hu	Mit carr D.1 ing to.	"W"100A.01	Los Argolar
Walnut Fac. 5 Aparturents	17.2		5 333,000.00	.1	1	No.	Nc Nc	Stutt and Sons Flectric	Venture	Vertura V
Wellint Family Apentments	1772		20/355/35 5	el	1	4u	ha	siteworks, ns.	Simi Valicy	Wertura
Walnut Iscriby Apartments	1772		5 125,145.02		1	95	Ye:-	Von HRKA snvronmental, inc.	Úsile d	Verrura
Origin - B. arti Milas		5 242,000,00		71		No.	RI-	(01Ten are An eliterature inc.	Victorark	Versuid
Orthond Beach Villae		5 57,400.00	-	6		Νu	SN	Michael Baker International	Carnarillo	Veroura
Orever's Back Vellac		MA		J		μa	N:	The Archatelin Company, mp.	Agou & HIIS	Ins Arentra
Ourie: o Beach Villas		S 10,000.00		2 J		ha	N	Collier's Internetionel	Sch Ciego	Sar Jiego
Urmone Beach Vulas		\$ 2350.00		¢		Ac	No.	Pacific Environmental Company	Laguna Niguri	-Breco
Grmone Brach V (ss		111.		•	1	No	2/2	Werkeran Frightsering & Consulting	Cisi.	Varianta
								Number of Contracts.	1	

1.008.2000 a	
3 Curtactors	and
	.1
20% [Fercentage of Contractors	73.5%
Amount of Consects	\$ 12,511,090.00
Receptage of Contract Amount	\$5.1%

Zacial/Ethnia: (Codes
White	a
flack on Africk's Air	2
taur (Taur	m
wwiter histanicr	4
varive Hawelienist	2
distan c	*
vot Hisnar c	.n

Type of Trade Con	*
Now Construction	1
Substantia Rehab	2
Secar	זה
Servitor	٩
Project Memt	'n
Frofess on a.	3
Tenarc Services	2
Fours Condra Taing	u
Arch/Lrg heering/Appra sal	ai
Cehar	Ŀ

1. Crartee Project Owner/Developer/SprosnetBuildea/Agoing City of Santa "aula Housing Authority

Amourn of Constant of Nation on: 7b

\$59,350.00

\$333,000.0

ype ix T Crok (See he) 70. lind ser

70

1

Ta, Name of Contact Pottar

Grout/Parquit Ny, idea sa HUB Case Number on other ideatrication of moperty, and the around the fing, on f, the

In the second second

Tim Maleney

66

Previous addition are christiale			angi	72										ferm 11UD-2516 (8.98)		
								*								
Contract and Subcont	ract Activity					11.5. Tieper	timent of Housing :	end Urban De	evelopment				OMB	Apprend No. 2577 6388	Apprenal No	05
		(incomentation is	r outer at all tro	avorate. S hours per re	sponse, inclucing the time for n	wicwing in	ismucijons, seurchi	no existing d	ata sources	satherine and maintai	nios the data nee	ded, and	concleting	and reviewing the collection -		
nformation as volumery. 11	UD may no: col	act this inform	ration, and you	a site unit redmined for co	implote this form, unless it displa	уула с ште	nthe valuel QMIR Co	antroi Numba	h.		53					
gainst the total program us of ormation is not collected briving Act Nutice - 1 lies	tivity and the der 1100 would not Juited States De	agnoted minor he able to esta partment of He	tity be since o at light monority one and UV	starptise (MBU) gosts, (ful MHE geals not ex- hun Develops, out, Fed	 developed by each Federic Age The Department requires the in- itace MBE performance agains eral Heusing Administration, is consett, except as required or :- 	formation these gos authorized	to provide guides. 18. 10 solier the Infor	te and overro	ght ûir prog	rams. In: the dovelopm	eat of menority b	ukines er	storprise oc	ateming Minority Business ()	sselootrent.	it the
Grantee/Froject Gregor/Der											Chock if:	2. Loop	ation (City,	State Zup (Jode)		
Conduct Beach I F (Many)			fit Committee	1							PH DI			Coky Rivel, Thousand Oaks, C	A.91362	1
And the second s		(The Designation	in corporation						÷		CH H	-			-	
											CPD Housing	-				
3a Name of Centary Person				36 Phone Namber (Inclu	kat, Aeva Coevy	4. Report:				5 Program Code (Pretary See explanation of Codes seprends sheet for another	Ecable for CPD pri- st bottom of Proc.1	(st a		S. Date Submitted to Field Office		
Series Wada		-	Contractor re	(X31) 196-1918		La	Uct, 1 - Si	сря, 30 (Anni	a - F S)							
Grand Project Number of IEDD Concernation of property, identification of property, a delayer, on, dowdleng, and, atc. 75.	Amperent Contractor Sciencesci Th	Type of Drate Code (Nee Lele A) 7c	Subernitsenia Supierse Raz cliffilmie (Sar helow) 7d	Woman Owned Bourseau (Vision Na) Te	Barne Contractor Loop flow for RLP Nucleer 20	Sec. 3 74	S Anonina In Hardflexion (ID) Korrwo 75	Ser. 3 7i.					tractor Na 7j,	ne and Address		
PA (day an Goodal Marin	Sale and	TR. Market	Ashida S	CALL DONNE		35 24 St.	A CONTRACTOR	a constant of the second	-	Name	Street			City	State	Zi
Cirmond Boach Villas	\$242,395.00	g	1	Nc		No		No		ro Architecture Inc.	887 Patnet Drive, Saile C			Mootpark	CA	9303
Orciond Beach Villas	\$92,400.00	\$	1	No		No		No		Baker International	5651 Verdug			Cemar Ila	CA	9301
Ormond Beach Villus	NKA	9	1	Nc		Nu		Ne		ngtorn Cleripany, Inc.	.5200 Agoura			Agoura Hills	CA.	9130
Ormond Beach Villas	\$10,000	6	1	Nc		No		No		ici s le cinational	9820 Willow Ci				CA.	9213
Dimond Scack Villes	\$2,150	é	1	No		Nu		No		wiroantentai Company	28202 Caho	Coail, Si	acite 300	Logima Niguel	Ū.A.	92.67
Ormond Beach Villos	NVA	б	1	Ko		Nc		No		nac Engineering & Consulting	P.O.	Box 391		Ojai	CA	¥302
																-
													_		-	-
												-				
																-
						-					-					-
			7c: Type of Th			īd: Rac	ial/Ribnir Colles:			5: Program Codes (C)	emplete for House	ing and Pe	nhlic and Jo	idian Housing programs only):		
CPD:			HousingPubli	c llousing:		1 - white				1 Allfan	ies, including Sectio	9n¢		S Section 202		
- New Construsion		1 = New Const	undur.	6 = Professional		2 = Disek e	r African American			2- Flexib's	Sebady			6 - HEP3-Hold (Management)		
 Encountriering 		2 = Substanted		7 = Tense: Services		3 = Asom				3 - Secon	S Nannanod, Non-	HEDA		7 = Public/Indua Housers,		
1 - Other		3 - Kepin		8 - Félemier/Touring		1 = Americ Aurometri 7				4 le youte	(Mszagement)			8 - Seet an 811		
		4 - Service		9 * Arch/Engre Apol *	-al	5 = Native	Baverian or Other Ex	vitie falander								
		4					o caugo cao pleaka ane: ee b) Nor									

	R: Type of	Trade Codest	7d. Bacial/Ethnie Codes:	5: Program Codes (Complete for Housing and Public	and Indian Housing programs only):
CPD:	HowingP	ubile Thorning:	1 · - WH (#	1 All incomb, inc. nic og Sattrauft	S = Section 702
J - New Construction	1 New Quezamel on	C = Professorial	2 - Blyck or African American	2- Familale Stewardy	6 + HLD-Helo (Managtanta?)
2 = Education/Training	2 · Substantial Rehab	9 - Tenani Services	2 = Avan	3 Sectors 8 Designed, Non-HPEA	7 - Public finits Housing.
1 – Otho	2 – Regan	8 = Tidemational La samesa	Autororie Native	4 = Inc. and (Management)	S - Suction #11
	4 = Servace	9 = Ancia Riccone, Approved	5 Native Howitze or Other Pacific Interder		
	5 - Drecast Manal	u - Otiner	Viralla, shave antegories, please and a) Emperato, to b) Not Hispatic		
Preverse addition and cheridate	5				femi 110D-2516 (8.95)

Contract and Subcontract Activity	U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development	OMII Approval No., 2577-0088	OMF Approval No. 2362-3555
Public reporting, inciden for this collection of information to compared to average .5 hours per resp Information is voluntary. HUD may not collect this information, and you are not required to comp	ense, including the name for remembing trast-vertices, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the view bits form, unless a daplays a sourcearly valut OMIR Control Number.	data nooded, and completing and reviewing the collect	tion of information. The
Presentive Orders clated fully 14, 1985, direvis the Milouray Business Davelopment Plans shall be against the total program activity and the designated minority bacanets extreptine (MMP) point inducations a not collected UUD words or for halften extrahing transmission 2008) and more evalu-	inscience by each Federal Agency and the these acrouel plane shall out abilith minority business developer our object for Department requires the information to growth publication and oversight for programs to the developerant of minor and MBE performance agenced these goals.	tives. This information is used by HUD to monifor and innerity business enterprise concerning. Minetry Busines	evaluate MBE activities as Development. If the
Privacy Act Notice - The United Stores Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federa release outside the United States Department of Heusing and Urban Development without your o	I Housing Administration, as authorized to solicit the Information requested in this fourity with σ of "Title (2, Dri ametin, except as required or permitted by Law.	ited States Code, Section 1701 or seq., and regulation.	It will not be disclosed of

4. Reporting Period

Sec. 3 Sec. 3 Sec. 3 Sec. 3 Sec. 3 National Sec. 3 Sec.

Yes N/A

ration Identifie Number 2⁴

Ho PI Aud Number (Including Area Code)

919) 228-4714

oman Osmad Ba (Yuu oʻYsa) 7g

N

N

vinna vinna vinna vinna iowi)

Det: 1 - Sept. 30 (Autual -FY)

Nome All American Roofing MM Mochanical, Inc.

Sec. 3 7i,

Yes Yes

Check if: 2. Location (C'ty, State Zip. Code) E. 13500 W. Telegraph Rd. Ste. B-1 Santa Paula, CA 93061

1

Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address 7J.

Street

415 Consitution Ave. 1027 Cincy Lare

6 Date Submitted to Field Office

Camarallo

Carpinteria

Zip 93012 93013

Contract and Subcontract Activity

C.S. Department of Bousing and Urban Development

OMB Appared No. 2577-0088 OMB Approvel No. 2502-0255 Public reputing backs, the this scalestion of its formation is explanded to average 2 hours our response, including the time for eviewing numericines, searching eviging data average, gathering and main arming the data resoluted, and completing and completing the collection of information. The Information is volucity. IUD may cau celles this information, and you are not required to complete this form, onless it cliquing to ear cally valid OMB Centrel Number.

min mono evolutivity. ILDU may do collect this information, and you are not required to configure and a more than a program of the end of the information of the end of the information of the end of

1. Granteo/Project Owner/Je Area Housing Authority of											Check if		y, State Zip. Code)		
anta nousing Autronny ce	the county of v	entura									PII	1400 h:Storest Da Newbury Park; C			
											CPD	NOMOUTY PAIR; C	119.320		
	9										Housing				-
Sa, Name of Control Patient				3h. Phone Nominar (Includ	ing Area Code)	4 Report	ng Period			5. Program Code (Net a)			6 Date Scientified to Field Office		
Bod McGebes				(805) 460-9991		12	(her 1 - 2	ent 30 (Ann	al EVI	See explanation of Und. strength should for each p		ge Use a			
Grant/Project Number on PUUS Core Number or other Number or other Number or deservery, subdivences, disselting writ, etc. 78,	Amour of Contact of Saboutan 76	Type of Toste Code (Suz hulow) 7a	Conta-site or Schoontractor Proviness Rach /Biloria (See bolow) 7d.		Pause Consarter Idam'dication (TD) Number 20		Subcontractor Identification (ID) Numbra 7b	Sec. 3		n/Subcontractor Nerse					
AND DESCRIPTION	San Andrews		行到机的设	Cast and a set of the		A. Section		COLUMN ST		Name		Street	City	State	Zip
	8,893,520.00	1	1	No	77-0521556	No		No	MeC	arthy Companies	721 Cast	Main Street	Ventura	CA	93001
	105,553.00	1	1	Nu		10	/3-1650186	No	в	5. R Fabrication	1715 N.	Olive Street	Ventora	CA	93001
	34,780.00	1	1	NO		No	77-0572197	No	Bei	nner & Carpenter	506 Fas	i Main Sheel	Sante Paule	CA	93060
	1,434.671.00	1	1	No		No	77-0556804	No	.FC	Construction Corp.	1459 Thousa	id Coke Sivo, Bidg H4	Thousand Oaks	CA	91362
	8,690,00	1	1	No		No	05-38802*3	No	Lanceos	ac Development Inc.	28447 Will	e spaan Pkey	Vavensia	CA	9135
	240,500,00	1	1	No		ka	94 '67 19'8	No	Ma	isolm Unling Co.	4926 Azus	a Canyor Rd.	Invince.e	CA	91706
	653,000,00	1	1	No		Na	77-0356483	No	Scot	and Sons Elected	1433 Aru	ndet Averue	Ventura	CA	93006
	35,360.60	1	1	No		Na	77-0526767	No		Siteworks, Inc.	45C6 Industri	al Streét Suite 2C	Sini Valey	CA	93063
	125,140.00	1	1	No		Yes	46 3656721	Yes	VonTER	RA Environmental, Inc.	201 Can	delāria Rosc	Ownard	CA	83030
	7c: Type of Frade Codes:						7d: Racial/Ethnic Codes: 5: Program Codes:					using and Public and In	dian Housing programs only):		
CPD: BussingPublic			fluesing/Public flousing:				1 - 95 die				L = All Insured, including SectionS				
I - Now Construction.	ruttin 1 - New Quarteries 6 - Pre-basemi			6-Pelomoral		Affican Anterions			7 Hesable	Subside		6 = 110D-Heid (Management)			
9 — Education: Training		2 – Solatential I	Kelws.	7 - Terant Services		3 = Anian				5 Section & Nonaisureal, Non-LICA			7 - Puinic-Initia Housing	24	
5 = Other		3 = Керпт		& = Tel station/Training		4 – Americ Acarolics a h				4 - Insured	(Management)		R = Searion \$11		
4. Servia		4. Spenies 9 = Arch, Fr. 1977, Arpornigal 5 - Propert Kanga, 9 - Utles				5 - Networ Davasian or Other Pacific islander Tection above nategories, please and at Disposies or b) Net Disposie									
Providus ofitions are obsolete,													form HUD-2516 (8/98)		
						1							,		